
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd. 
March 8, 2017, at 9:30 a.m. 

Call to Order for LAMTD Board of Directors Meeting  

1. Approval of Minutes    Approval 

2. Public Comments

***Winner of the Roadeo / Bill Knieriem 

3. Financial Matters / David Persaud
 None 

   None 
(a) Crowe-Horwath FRS Financial Report Status
(b) LAMTD Financials
(c) PCTS Financials  None 

4. Transportation Disadvantaged / Aaron Dunn
(a) CTC Evaluation    None 

5. Human Resources, Risk, Safety & Security / Steve Schaible
(a) Transportation Coordinator Position    Approval 
(b) LAMTD Turnover Report    None 

6. Legal / Tim Darby
(a) Transfer of Federally Funded Assets from Polk County to LAMTD   Approval 
(b) Coordination Agreement between LAMTD and Polk County   Approval 
(c) LDDA UAP Renewal  Approval 

7. Operations / Bill Knieriem
(a) TSI Quarterly Report   None 

8. Executive Update / Tom Phillips 
(a) Activity Calendar   None 
(b) UAP & Ridership Report  None 
(c) Florida Avenue Re-alignment Update  None 
(d) Executive Director Report   None 

9. Other Business

Adjournment 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of February 8, 2017 LAMTD Board of 

Directors Meeting Minutes 
 

Presenter: Marcy Harrison 
  

Recommended  
Action: Board of Directors approve the Minutes of the            

February 8, 2017 LAMTD Board of Directors 
Meeting. 

 

    
 

Attachments: February 8, 2017 LAMTD Board of Directors 
 Meeting Minutes 
   
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 8, 2017 

 

 
 

   
 
Directors: 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey III – Chairman 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Jim Malless – Vice Chairman 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Phillip Walker - Secretary 
Polk County Commissioner John Hall  
City of Lakeland Commissioner Don Selvage  
 
Executive Director:  Tom Phillips 
Executive Assistant:  Marcy Harrison 
 
 
Call to Order  
 8:30 a.m. By Chairman George Lindsey III 
 
 
Quorum 
All Present 
 
 
 
 
 
***GEM Award / Steven Schaible, Director of Human Resources 

• John Lia and Randy Beach, LAMTD Operators 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 
Approval request for the approval of the January 11, 2017 LAMTD Board of Director meeting minutes. 
                                          
   “Approval of January 11, 2017 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes”  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments 
None at this time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Agenda Item #3 – Finances / David Persaud, CFO 
David Persaud, CFO presented to the Board the items listed below: 
 
a) LAMTD Financials 

FY 2016-2017 
Year to Date December 31, 2016 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 25% $2,600,903 $3,908,638 29% $10.4 Million 
Expenses YTD 25% $2,540,123 $1,945,565 77% $10.4 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through December 31, 2016 totaled $3.9 million or 50% of the YTD budget. 
 

Farebox and all contract revenues reflect 11% over budgeted revenues through December 31, 2016.  
Farebox revenues are under budget $49,000 due to decline in ridership and some comingling of revenue that is 
being addressed.  
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.3 million.  The total budgeted revenues are $3.9 million. Revenues are over budget 
since only 95% of the taxes are budgeted and due date is November 2016. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.6 million is being billed quarterly with no revenue YTD.  These grants are on a 
cash basis which mean the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance.  

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million with no revenue YTD.  This grant is also 

on a cash basis which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  
Since most of the grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement 
is received at the end of the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income is also lagging at $18,197 but should improve. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is in line with budget. 
 

• The other revenues are showing a lag due to timing and being on a cash basis. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

Monthly Financial Report 
Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 

For the Year-to-date December 31, 2016 
FY 2016-2017 

 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through December 31, 2016 totaled $1.95 million or 77% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 65% of the FY 2016-2017 YTD budget.  As of December 31, 2016 these expenses 
totaled $1.3 million or 79% of the YTD budget of $1.6 million and is under budget. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $45,000 of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $24,000 of the YTD budget, over budget due to one-time expense.  

 
• Fuel expenses totaled $135,000 YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  

 
• Materials and supplies totaled $151,000 under budget, a favorable variance. 

 
• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $5,600 over budget, offset with revenues. 

 
• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for Florida Public Transportation. 

 
• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments under budget, since payments are quarterly 

and annually. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through December 31, 2016 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through December 31st the financials reflect a favorable actual 
variance of $1.96 million due to the collection of property taxes.  

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 





 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

c)  CRA Update 
 
 For Fiscal Year 2014-2015 the LAMTD paid the City of Lakeland Redevelopment Trust Fund (CRA) 

for tax year 2014 $114,461.  Each fiscal year the District includes a budget for this obligation. 
 
 For FY 2015-2016 Tax Year 2015 the payment is $139,135 or $24,674 and 21.56 percent increase 

for FY 2016-17 the amount is $160,948 or 16% increase. 
 
  
 The payments are for Tax Increment Districts 

  
  
 The payments are made annually based on the annual final Tax Rolls issued by the Polk County 

Property Appraiser’s Office. 
 Chapter 163.387 (2)(b) F.S. requires that the Tax Increment payments be made to the City of 

Lakeland as the Community Redevelopment Agency. 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 – Call Center / Marcia Roberson, RMCC Director 
Marcia Roberson presented and requested approval for the District’s Title VI Compliance Plan. 
        

                                                  
 
                 “Approval of the District’s Title VI Compliance Plan”  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 

District 2014 2015 Change 2016 Change 
Downtown District 48 & 49 $37,736 $40,986 8.6% $46,156 13% 
Dixieland District $6,903 $7,441 7.8% $8,876 19% 
Midtown District 55  $69,822 $90,708 30% $105,911 17% 
Total $114,461 $139,135 21.56% $160,948 16% 



 

 
Agenda Item #5 – Human Resources / Steve Schaible 
Steve Schaible presented to the Board the items listed below: 
 
a)  Flex Spending 
  The District will be adding a Flexible Spending Account to its employees at a minimal cost of approximately 
  $3.00 per employee.  This new benefit can be used for a variety of out-of-pocket health care expenses as 
  well as improve our benefits package for staff recruitment.  The FSA will launch this March with a benefit 
  of $1,500 per employee and upon the start of a new year, the full amount of $2,600 per employee  
  will become available for those that choose to participate. 
 
 
b)  Safety Committee Credit 
  The Florida Municipal Insurance Trust has certified that as long as Citrus Connection maintains an active  
  safety and health workplace program, it will qualify for a premium safety credit.  The key elements  
  necessary to are: 
 

1. Management Commitment to Safety (Written safety policy) 
2. Safety Committee (Written safety committee minutes) 
3. Safety and Health and Training (Documentation of specific training) 
4. Safety Rules, Policy and Procedures Requirements (Safety Manual) 
5. Accident Prevention (Self Inspections) 
6. First-Aid Procedures (Update first aid supplies/training) 
7. Record Keeping (Written accident investigation data, etc.) 

 
 
  The District has agreed to provide the FMIT Risk Control Representative full access on request, towards  
  verification of your ongoing safety efforts.  The safety and health records will be maintained at a single  
  location and be easily accessible to the FMIT Risk Control Representative at any time. The District  
  agrees to comply, in a timely manner, with all safety and health recommendations made by the Risk  
  Control Representative. 
 
 
c)  SSPP and SPP - Paul Simms, Training/Professional Development Manager, presented and requested to the Board  
approval of the SSPP and SPP for Citrus Connection.  
  
 Annually, the District is required to update the System Safety Program Plan (SSPP).  The 2017 

update describes the functions and responsibilities required to implement and maintain a high 
level of safety at the Citrus Connection.  The SSPP provides a means for improving 
communications, documentation, and coordination within the entire system.  It contributes to 
employees’ safety knowledge in order to reduce injuries, property damage, and delays in service.  
The SSPP applies to all areas of the transit system, including:  facility design; administration; 
equipment procurement; operations; and maintenance.   

 
Attachments:The SPP has been adopted separately from the SSPP. Bus transit systems are prohibited by Section 119.071(3) (2), Florida Statutes, from 
publicly disclosing the SPP, as applicable under any circumstance. The document is maintained in a secure location by the management and access 
to the document is restricted to select agency personnel and appropriate FDOT personnel exercising oversight in this area. On-site access to the SPP 
is granted to regulatory authorities (FDOT, FTA, etc.) on as-needed basis.  
 
 
    “Approval of the District’s SSPP and SPP Plans”  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 



 

Agenda Item #6 – Executive Report / Executive Report 
Tom Phillips, ED presented to the Board the items below. 
 
a)  Activity Calendar  (Calendar in Board Packet) 
 
b)  UAP & Ridership Report  (Report in Board Packet) 
 
c)  District Update -   

• The District has notified the City of Lakeland that the District is interested in leasing the current Lakeland 
Chamber of Commerce Building once available. 

• COLTS program has been implemented in Hillsborough County and being monitored by other Florida 
counties to be incorporate in their transit services. 

• The District met with HART regarding bus stops on Countyline Road and they have agreed to install the 
stop signage posts to assist in the new service.  Citrus Connection Route 45 will be linked with this new 
service and we will be the first transit organization to infiltrate into Hillsborough County.  
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item #7 –  Other Business  
None at this time 
 
 
 
***Board Action Items for March 8, 2017 

1. Turnover rate model to include reason for separation – Commissioner Jim Malless 
 
 
   
 
Adjournment 
 
Approved this 8th day of February, 2017. 
 
 
 
______________________________________                                       _____________________________ 
Chairman – Commissioner George Lindsey III                                           Minutes Recorder – Marcy Harrison 
  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Public Comments 
 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
 
Recommended  
Action: TBD 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #3(a) 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: January 31, 2017 LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 
 FY 2016-17 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date January 31, 2017 

FY 2016-2017 
Year to Date January 31, 2017 

 
Description YTD of FY  

Budget 
YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 

Expended 
Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 33% $3,467,870 $4,266,477 123% $10.4 Million 
Expenses YTD 33% $3,386,830 $2,829,985 84% $10.4 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through January 31, 2017 totaled $4.3 million or 123% of the YTD budget. 
 

Farebox and all contract revenues reflect 5% over budgeted revenues through January 31, 2017.  
Farebox revenues are under budget $67,000 due to decline in ridership and some comingling of revenue that is 
being addressed.  
 

• Ad Valorem taxes reflect $3.5 million.  The total budgeted revenues are $3.9 million. Revenues are over budget 
since only 95% of the taxes are budgeted and due date is November 2016. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 
 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year.  The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.6 million is being billed quarterly with no revenue YTD.  These grants are on a 
cash basis which mean the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance.  

 
• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.6 million with $41,200 revenue YTD.  This grant is 

also on a cash basis which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  
Since most of the grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement 
is received at the end of the fiscal year after State funds are recognized.  
 

• Advertising income is also lagging at $23,000 but should improve as payments are realized. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is in line with budget. 
 

• The other revenues are showing a lag due to timing and being on a cash basis. 
 
 
 
 

 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date January 31, 2017 

FY 2016-2017 
 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through January 31, 2017 totaled $2.8 million or 84% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 65% of the FY 2016-2017 YTD budget.  As of January 31, 2017 these expenses 
totaled $1.844 million or 83% of the YTD budget of $2.2 million and is under budget. 

 
• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $57,000 of the YTD budget; a favorable variance. 

 
• Other services expenses totaled $33,000 of the YTD budget, over budget due to cost for temporary employees in 

Finance- budgeted in salaries account.  
 

• Fuel expenses totaled $166,000 YTD budget due to declining fuel prices; a favorable variance.  
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $201,000 under budget, a favorable variance. 
 

• Advertising promotion expenses totaled $6,300 over budget, offset with advertising revenues. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions, and office supplies are over budget due to payment for Florida Public Transportation. 
 

• Property appraiser, Tax Collector Commission and CRA payments under budget, since payments are quarterly 
and annually. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through January 31, 2017 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through January 31st the financials reflect a favorable actual 
variance of $1.4 million due to the collection of property taxes.  

 
 
 

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                                                            9/30/15            9/30/2014       9/30/2013         9/30/2012            9/30/2011 
1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)        25.50%              23.08%               25.16%             23.02%                    20.32% 
2.  Cost per revenue hour                              $89.45                $86.29               $83.84                $83.62                    $91.26 
3.  Revenue Hours                                          103,550             117,008             116,422              112,539                  115,679 
4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                             $847,360          $1,316,739       $1,367,289         $1,317,442           $1,349,788 
5.  Ridership                                                  1,424,965           1,647,010         1,638,470           1,452,161              1,768,087 

 



M
O

N
TH

 O
F 

 
(S

oR
E 

6/
3/

15
)

 

$'
s

%
$'

s
%

R
EV

EN
U

ES
:

Ac
co

un
t

R
4

Fa
re

bo
x/

Pa
ss

 S
al

es
52

,7
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

70
,7

11
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(1

8,
00

7)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-2
5%

21
5,

99
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
28

2,
84

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

(6
6,

84
9)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-2

4%
84

8,
53

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

R
6

C
on

tra
ct

 In
co

m
e 

(U
AP

)
16

,5
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
,2

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,7
32

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-1

8%
67

,0
79

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

81
,0

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(1

3,
96

1)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-1
7%

24
3,

12
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
R

3
O

th
er

 C
on

tra
ct

 R
ev

en
ue

31
,2

46
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
24

,0
76

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7,
17

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
30

%
20

1,
21

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

96
,3

03
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

4,
90

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

10
9%

28
8,

91
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
R

5
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

In
co

m
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
83

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(8
33

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

33
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(3
,3

33
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

R
7

Ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
62

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
14

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(9
,8

78
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-6
8%

22
,8

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
58

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(3
5,

18
1)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-6

1%
17

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

R
8

In
ve

st
m

en
t/I

nt
er

es
t I

nc
om

e 
(n

et
)

6,
29

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
83

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
46

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
65

5%
19

,4
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
33

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
16

,1
59

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

48
5%

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
R

9
Ad

 V
al

or
um

 In
co

m
e,

 n
et

20
8,

60
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
32

4,
37

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

(1
15

,7
69

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-3
6%

3,
51

0,
85

4
$ 

   
   

   
1,

29
7,

48
7

$ 
   

   
   

2,
21

3,
36

8
$ 

   
   

   
17

1%
3,

89
2,

46
0

$ 
   

   
   

R
10

FD
O

T 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

7,
00

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

(1
37

,0
02

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-1
00

%
41

,1
63

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

54
8,

00
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
(5

06
,8

44
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-9

2%
1,

64
4,

02
0

$ 
   

   
   

R
11

Fe
de

ra
l O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
7,

62
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
(2

17
,6

26
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-1

00
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

87
0,

50
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
(8

70
,5

03
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-1

00
%

2,
61

1,
51

0
$ 

   
   

   
R

12
C

ha
rit

ab
le

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,5

31
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(1

2,
53

1)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

,1
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(5
0,

12
3)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-1

00
%

15
0,

37
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
R

13
C

os
t R

ec
ov

er
y

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
10

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(3

,1
09

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
%

16
,4

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

,4
37

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4,
05

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
33

%
37

,3
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

26
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

As
si

st
an

ce
:

#R
EF

!
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#R

EF
!

0%
#R

EF
!

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#R
EF

!
0%

R
1

Ba
rto

w
 E

xp
re

ss
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

27
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(3
,2

74
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
6,

47
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

13
,0

97
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(6

,6
17

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-5

1%
39

,2
90

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

R
2

PC
TS

 - 
Su

pp
or

t C
os

t R
ei

m
b.

37
,8

41
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
37

,8
41

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0%
16

4,
89

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

15
1,

36
3

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,5
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9%
45

4,
09

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

R
es

er
ve

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
ES

35
7,

83
8.

82
$ 

   
   

 
86

6,
96

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

(5
09

,1
29

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-5
9%

4,
26

6,
47

6.
90

$ 
   

 
3,

46
7,

87
0

$ 
   

   
   

79
8,

60
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

%
10

,4
03

,6
10

$ 
   

   
 

EL
IG

IB
LE

 E
XP

EN
SE

S:
1

Sa
la

rie
s

35
0,

86
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
37

2,
05

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
1,

19
3)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-6

%
1,

22
5,

99
0

$ 
   

   
   

1,
48

8,
23

0
$ 

   
   

   
(2

62
,2

40
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-1

8%
4,

46
4,

69
0

$ 
   

   
   

2
Em

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
17

6,
59

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

18
6,

01
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
(9

,4
20

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-5

%
61

7,
85

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

74
4,

04
5

$ 
   

   
   

  
(1

26
,1

94
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-1

7%
2,

23
2,

13
4

$ 
   

   
   

3
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 F
ee

s
81

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
12

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(3

07
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-2

7%
1,

81
9

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,6
82

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-6

0%
13

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 &

 T
ec

hi
ni

ca
l S

er
11

,5
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

31
,4

90
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(1

9,
89

8)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-6
3%

56
,9

56
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

5,
96

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

(6
9,

00
4)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-5

5%
37

7,
88

1
$ 

   
   

   
  

5
C

on
tra

ct
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s

3,
79

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
8,

19
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(4
,4

00
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-5
4%

18
,0

39
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
32

,7
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(1
4,

74
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-4

5%
98

,3
50

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

6
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
8,

98
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
35

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
5,

62
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

16
8%

32
,6

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

,4
10

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

19
,2

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

4%
40

,2
29

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

7
Fu

el
 &

 L
ub

ric
an

ts
26

,8
38

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

47
,5

85
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(2

0,
74

7)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-4
4%

16
5,

87
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
19

0,
34

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
4,

46
8)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-1

3%
57

1,
02

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

8
Fr

ei
gh

t
11

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

29
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

75
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-6

0%
2,

63
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
16

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

47
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

12
6%

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
9

R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

22
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

70
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(3
,4

87
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-9
4%

2,
95

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
14

,8
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(1
1,

87
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-8

0%
44

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
M

at
er

ia
ls

 &
 S

up
pl

ie
s

50
,0

11
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
57

,0
49

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(7
,0

38
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-1
2%

20
1,

14
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
22

8,
19

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

(2
7,

04
9)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-1

2%
68

4,
59

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
U

til
iti

es
/T

el
ep

ho
ne

 
4,

12
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

9,
16

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(5

,0
46

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-5

5%
27

,9
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

36
,6

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(8

,7
27

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-2

4%
11

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

12
Ph

ys
ic

al
 D

am
ag

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

3,
04

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
2,

26
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
34

%
8,

59
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

9,
06

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(4

72
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-5

%
27

,2
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

13
Li

ab
 &

 P
ro

p 
D

am
ag

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

16
,1

17
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
19

,4
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(3
,3

17
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-1
7%

67
,0

64
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
77

,7
33

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(1
0,

67
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-1

4%
23

3,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
O

th
er

 C
op

or
at

e 
In

su
ra

nc
e

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

67
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
%

1,
01

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

34
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
52

%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

15
D

ue
s 

& 
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
16

,1
39

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
48

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
12

,6
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

36
3%

23
,6

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

,9
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9,
67

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
69

%
41

,7
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
Ed

uc
at

io
n/

Tr
ai

ni
ng

/M
ee

tin
g/

Tr
av

el
8,

20
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
64

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

55
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

23
%

25
,7

62
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
26

,5
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(8
21

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
%

79
,7

50
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
17

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
ha

rg
es

1,
14

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
91

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

%
6,

42
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
2,

75
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

75
%

11
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
18

O
ffi

ce
 E

xp
en

se
6,

25
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

9,
23

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,9
84

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-3

2%
33

,1
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

36
,9

48
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,7
81

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-1

0%
11

0,
84

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

19
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

 &
 P

ro
m

ot
io

ns
60

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,0
62

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
-6

4%
6,

25
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

6,
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(4

16
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-6

%
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

Ex
pe

ns
es

1,
29

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
35

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

93
2

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

9%
79

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
43

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
(6

39
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-4

5%
4,

31
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

21
Pr

op
er

ty
 A

pp
ra

is
er

/T
ax

 C
ol

le
ct

or
 C

om
m

21
,8

72
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

,2
83

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

9,
58

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
78

%
98

,4
20

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

49
,1

33
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
49

,2
87

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
0%

14
7,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
22

LD
D

A,
 C

R
A 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
0,

94
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

,1
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
8,

78
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

23
%

16
0,

94
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
48

,6
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

11
2,

28
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

1%
14

6,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

23
C

ap
ita

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s/
 D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
11

,0
14

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

57
,8

83
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(4

6,
86

9)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-8
1%

44
,0

58
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
23

1,
53

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

(1
87

,4
75

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

-8
1%

69
4,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
24

Ba
d 

D
eb

t
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
67

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
66

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

(6
67

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

%
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

25
R

es
tri

ct
ed

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
,2

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(2

0,
26

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

-1
00

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
81

,0
40

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(8
1,

04
0)

$ 
   

   
   

   
-1

00
%

24
3,

12
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
TO

TA
L 

EL
IG

IB
LE

 E
XP

EN
SE

S:
88

0,
57

5
$ 

   
   

   
  

84
6,

70
8

$ 
   

   
   

  
33

,8
68

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

4%
2,

82
9,

98
5

$ 
   

   
   

3,
38

6,
83

0
$ 

   
   

   
(5

56
,8

46
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
-1

6%
10

,4
03

,6
10

$ 
   

   
 

N
ET

 R
EV

EN
U

ES
 O

VE
R

(U
N

D
ER

)  
EX

PE
N

SE
S

(5
22

,7
36

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

20
,2

60
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
(5

42
,9

96
)

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

43
6,

49
2

$ 
   

   
   

81
,0

40
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

35
5,

45
2

$ 
   

   
   

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

FY
 2

01
7

M
O

N
TH

LY
 F

IN
AN

C
IA

L 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

Ja
n 

20
17

M
on

th
YT

D
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 

An
nu

al
 B

ud
ge

t
Ac

tu
al

B
ud

ge
t

Va
ria

nc
e

Ac
tu

al
B

ud
ge

t
Va

ria
nc

e



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #3(b) 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: January 31, 2017 Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2016-17 
 
Presenter: David Persaud, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Recommended  
Action: None 
 
Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 
District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 
 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 
the budget. 

 
Attachments: See Attachments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #__ 

 
 

 
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 
              Month of January 31, 2017 
                      Year to Date Report 
              Percent of FY Reported (33%) 

 
 

 
Revenues  
 The revenues totaled $1.3. million or 22% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The FTA grant drawdown reflects no activity of the budgeted revenues. 
 Fare Revenues totaled $43,000 or 104% of the year-to-date budget. 
 The County funding is designed to reflect the first and second payment for the 

budget grants match totaling $1.3 million. 
 
Expenses 
 Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 
 Total expenses for the period totaled $1.4 million or 23% of the year-to-date 

budget.  
 Salaries and wages totaled $735,000 or 59% of the YTD Budget. 
 Operating expenses totaled $592,000 or 94% of the YTD Budget. 
 The contract services are for contractual cost for the Lynx service and other 

planned contractual services totaled $86,000 or 51% of the year-to-date 
budget. 

 
 
 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Financial Statement 

Polk County Contract 
Month of January 2017 

 
Revenue 

     

  Annual Budget YTD Budget  YTD Actual 

Percent 
Expende

d 
Revenues          
FTA 5307 Grant  $         2,147,360   $        715,787   $                   -  0% 
Fares  $            123,780   $          41,260   $          42,808  104% 
FDOT Block Grant  $            711,773   $        237,258    0% 
City Contribution  $            208,085   $          69,362   $                   -  0% 
FDOT Block Grants:         

JARC AQ379  $              76,479   $          25,493    0% 
New Freedom AQ497  $              89,808   $          29,936    0% 
FTA 5311 AQ R07  $            800,575   $        266,858    0% 

County Match  $         1,960,704   $        653,568   $     1,307,136  200% 
          
          
Total  $         6,118,564   $     2,039,522   $     1,349,944  22% 

     
     
     

Expenses 
     

  Annual Budget YTD Budget  YTD Actual 

Percent 
Expende

d 
Labor  $         3,731,659   $     1,243,886   $        734,623  59% 
         
Contract  $            506,300   $        168,767   $          86,104  51% 
          
Operating  $         1,880,605   $        626,868   $        592,312  94% 
          
Total  $         6,118,564   $     2,039,521   $     1,413,039  23% 

     
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #4(a) 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Review of the 2016 CTC Evaluation Report 
  
Presenter: Aaron Dunn, Para Transit Manager  
Recommended 
 
Action: Review CTC Evaluation   
 
Summary: On April 1st 2016 the Citrus Connection officially assumed the 

state Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) 
appointment as the Community Transportation Coordinator 
(CTC). Each year, with the coordination of the Polk 
Transportation Planning Office (TPO) and the Local 
Coordinating Board (LCB), the designated Community 
Transportation Coordinator (CTC) is evaluated on state-
mandated, LCB derived criteria. During the 2nd Quarterly Local 
Coordinating Board (LCB) meeting, a favorable CTC 
evaluation was submitted and approved.   

  
 The CTC is responsible for the TD program with the following 

responsibilities:  
I. Plan, administer, monitor, coordinate, arrange, and 

deliver coordinated Transportation Disadvantaged 
services originating in their designated service area 

a) Operate centralized call center 
b) Determine trip eligibility 
c) Schedule trips 
d) Perform gatekeeping duties 
e) Invoice purchasing agencies 

II. The CTC is evaluated for performance in the following 
categories: 

a) Total TD population served 
b) Percentage of trips on fixed-route (bus 

passes) 
c)  Average cost per trip 
d) Average cost per paratransit trip 



AGENDA ITEM # – CONT. 
 

e) Accidents per 100,000 vehicle miles 
f) Vehicle miles between road calls  
g) Complaints per 1,000 paratransit trips 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 



 

 
 
 
 

POLK COUNTY  
COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR 

FY 2015 / 2016 Evaluation 
 
 
 

Transportation Disadvantaged 
Local Coordinating Board 

 
 
 
 

 
Evaluation Conducted by: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Polk Transportation Planning Organization 
P.O. Box 9005, Drawer TS05 
Bartow, Florida 33831-9005 

(863) 534-6495 
 

Approved by Local Coordinating Board 
February 13, 2017 

 



 

 
 

 
 

Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board 
2016 Annual Evaluation of the Polk County  

Community Transportation Coordinator 
 
 
 

CTC:     Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (LAMTD)  
ADDRESS:     1212 George Jenkins Boulevard    

     Lakeland, FL 33815 
CONTACT:     Tom Phillips, Executive Director    

  
PHONE:         863-327-1303 
FAX:    863-688-8019     

 
TYPE OF REVIEW:     Annual Evaluation of the CTC 
REVIEW DATES:     FY 2015/16 (July 2015 - June 2016) 

 
REVIEWING AGENCY:  Polk Transportation Planning Organization 
ADDRESS:   P.O. Box 9005, Drawer TS05     

     Bartow, FL 33831-9005 
CONTACT:     Diane Slaybaugh, Senior Transportation Planner 
PHONE:   863/534-6495 
 
 
 
 
EVALUATION COMMITTEE:  
 
Marcia Staszko, LCB Member 
Carlos Gonzalez, LCB Member 
Joy Johnson, LCB Member 
Diane Slaybaugh, Polk TPO 
 
 
 





 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 ii 
POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Table of Contents 
Table of Contents...................................................................................................... ii 

List of Tables ........................................................................................................... iii 

Section 1. Introduction/General Information ............................................................... 1 

Section 2. Performance Measures .............................................................................. 4 

Section 3. Compliance with Chapter 427, F.S. ........................................................... 10 

Section 4. Compliance with 41-2, F.A.C. ................................................................... 12 

Section 5. Level of Competition ................................................................................ 14 

Section 6. Level of Coordination ............................................................................... 16 

Section 7. Americans with Disabilities Act ................................................................. 21 

Section 8. Bus/Van Ride .......................................................................................... 21 

Section 9. Surveys .................................................................................................. 22 

Section 10. Follow-up of previous QAPE Review (if applicable) ................................... 24 

Section 11. Additional Observations ......................................................................... 24 

Section 12. Current Year Trip and Equipment Grant .................................................. 24 

Section 13. Appendices ........................................................................................... 25 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 iii 
POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

List of Tables 
Table 1. Trip Cost by Expense Category – All Trips ...................................................... 7 

Table 2. FY 2015 Performance Standards - Peer Comparison ....................................... 7 

Table 3. Peer Comparative Data ................................................................................. 8 

Table 4. Peer Averages.............................................................................................. 8 

Table 5. Summary of CTC Performance FY 2010 - FY 2015 .......................................... 9 

Table 6. Inventory of Transportation Operators in the Service Area ............................ 14 

Table 7. Transportation Operators Selection Method (Past 5 Years) ........................... 14 

Table 8. Transportation Operators Selection Criteria .................................................. 15 

 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 1 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 1. Introduction/General Information 
CTC Background 

The Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged designated the Lakeland 
Area Mass Transit District (LAMTD) as the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) 
for Polk County effective April 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021.  LAMTD operates 
paratransit door-to-door services, fixed-route services, as well as complementary 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) services, in the urban and rural areas on Polk 
County as a partial-brokerage.  LAMTD services include ambulatory and wheelchairs, 
with trips performed in county and out-of-county. 

Pursuant to Florida Statutes, the Local Coordinating Board (LCB) evaluates the 
performance of the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC), approves the CTC's 
annual service plan, which includes an evaluation element, and provides 
recommendations to the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) 
regarding the renewal of the CTC's contract. This evaluation is for FY 2015/16 or the 
period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016. Prior to the effective date of April 1, 2016, the 
Polk County Board of County Commissioners served as the CTC for Polk County.  
Therefore, this evaluation includes data from the Polk BOCC for nine months of service 
and three months of data from LAMTD.  Historical performance comparison data is from 
the FY 2015 Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged Annual Performance 
Report. 

The operating area of the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) includes all of 
Polk County, an area covering 2,010 square miles which makes it the fourth largest 
county in Florida. The 2016 population was estimated at 626,787.  There are two 
urbanized areas (Lakeland and Winter Haven) centrally located within its borders, with 
both areas exceeding 200,000 population according to the 2010 Census, making it the 
ninth largest populous area within the State of Florida.  Fixed route bus service is 
available in the Lakeland and Winter Haven urbanized areas and intercity flex route 
service on routes serving rural areas which include Poinciana and smaller cities in the 
county. 

During the FY 2015/16 evaluation period, service was provided in the Polk County 
Coordinated system by the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District through a contract with 
the Polk County Board of County Commissioners, who was the CTC for Polk County 
through March 31, 2016.  The CTC has eight coordination agreements in place with 
various non-profit organizations throughout Polk County.   

Non-sponsored (Transportation Disadvantaged) riders must contact the CTC to arrange 
transportation. The CTC verifies trip requests and assigns trips to vehicles based on 
input from the CTC’s automated scheduling/dispatching system. 

FY 2015/2016 Evaluation Related Highlights 

 The 2015/16 Annual Operating Report was submitted on time. 

 The Regional Mobility Call Center which consolidated customer service and 
dispatch for Polk County Transit Services, Winter Haven Area Transit and the 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 2 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District in Lakeland continues to be a benefit for 
TD riders.  This center was funded through a Veteran’s Initiative grant. 

 

Summary of CTC Operations 

Coordination 

The CTC operates a Regional Mobility Call Center for assessing the mobility needs of the 
transportation disadvantaged to provide services through all modes and areas for Polk 
County residents.  The CTC uses eligibility criteria to determine needs and eligibility.  
TD trip purposes are prioritized annually based on the available funding and the areas 
of most need.  Additionally, the CTC has coordinated with two non-profit volunteer 
agencies to share resources and have the agencies utilize the Trapeze database for 
reporting and tracking purposes. 

Competition 

The CTC uses Request for Qualifications/Request for Proposals to respond to operators 
interested in providing transportation within the coordinated system. There was a 
Request for Qualifications/Request for Proposals conducted in FY 2015/2016 by LAMTD.  
The RFQ/P was released to solicit interested parties for new transportation operators 
under the coordinated system.  Only one response was received from ElderPoint 
Ministries, who has a current coordination agreement with the CTC. 

 

Quality 

The CTC was monitored regularly by the Polk County Social Services monitoring unit, 
which is independent to the Transit Services Division, to help ensure the qualitative 
aspects of the system (complaints, safety, vehicle maintenance, drug and alcohol 
compliance, risk management, etc.) are maintained.  The Monitoring report for LAMTD 
during the evaluation period is attached to this report.  

 

Training 

System standards for training are outlined in each contract between the CTC and each 
provider or agency.  

  

Unmet Needs 

Evaluation of unmet needs to be reviewed on a regular basis, including trip denials.  
This is due to the fact that approximately $140,000 was left at the end of the grant 
cycle, an indicator that the CTC could have performed more trips in 2015/16.  This will 
be included in the recommendations of the CTC evaluation committee, and will be 
monitored to ensure that the TD population is being well served. 

 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 3 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Service Hours 

Telephone reservations may be made from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on weekdays, and 
8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. on Saturdays.  No Sunday service.  Reservations are to be made 
a minimum of 72 hours in advance and may be made up to 7 days in advance.   

 

Accountability 

The CTC reports on performance measures at each LCB meeting. The CTC’s 
comprehensive transportation management software system has increased information 
management and reporting capabilities, and it is recommended that the CTC 
management and staff get the necessary training to better utilize the data from Trapeze 
for service planning and coordination purposes. 

 

Cost Effectiveness 

The CTC attempts to controls costs by dictating a maximum per mile allowable limit. 
Instead of selecting operators through a bid process, the CTC has been using a Request 
for Qualifications, setting rules, procedures and limits to which providers must agree 
before contract execution. 

 

Area of Noncompliance:  None 

Recommendation:  CTC management and staff get the necessary training to better 
utilize the data from Trapeze for service planning and coordination purposes.  With the 
funding amount left on the table at the end of FY 2016, perhaps the CTC should 
consider asking the LCB to open up trip priorities for TD eligible clients. 

Timeline for Compliance:  This area will be reviewed for improvements during the 
next CTC evaluation cycle.   



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 4 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 2. Performance Measures 
Transportation Disadvantaged Program Goals 

The Polk County Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) identifies the 
following five goals of the local Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) program: 

Goal 1. Enhance the availability of transportation services to meet the mobility needs 
of transportation disadvantaged person. 

Goal 2. Provide transportation disadvantaged services in a cost-effective and efficient 
manner. 

Goal 3. Improve public awareness of the Transportation Disadvantaged program. 

Goal 4. Provide transportation services in a safe and reliable manner. 

Goal 5. Ensure program accountability by collecting and reporting system and 
provider data in an accurate and timely manner. 

Those goals and corresponding objectives and policies help guide the annual evaluation 
of the CTC by through a set of performance measures.  The following performance 
measures are tracked annually by the Local Coordinating Board: 

 Serve at least 9% of the potential TD population. 

 Perform at least 25% of trips on the fixed-route system. 

 Keep the average cost per trip below $19.00. 

 Keep the average cost per paratransit trip below $29.00. 

 Maintain a 90% or better on-time performance. 

 Receive no more than 2 complaints per 1,000 trips. 

 Do not exceed more than 1.0 accident per 100,000 miles of service. 

 Obtain at least 30,000 vehicle miles between maintenance road calls. 

 

Performance Measure Outcomes 

The following highlights are based on data reported by the FY 2015/16 CTC Annual 
Operating Report. Statewide totals and data reported for other counties are drawn from 
the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged’s published 2015 Annual 
Performance Report.  Performance measure data can be found in tables 1 through 6 of 
this section. 

 Decrease in the percent of TD population transported. 5.83% of all those 
in Polk County determined to qualify for a Transportation Disadvantaged service 
were served by the program in 2016 – down from 6.5% in 2015 which is below 
the goal of serving at least 9%.  This decline is attributed to the loss of Medicaid 
trips and the transition of the CTC operations from the Polk County Board of 
County Commissioners to LAMTD. 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 5 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

o Decrease in passengers served. Total passengers served in 2016 
(13,409) decreased from 2015 (15,827).  This decrease is attributed to 
the changes in the Medicaid program along with changes in agency 
coordination agreements during the year.  

o Number of total trips increased. Total reported trips were up from 
392,509 to 477,313, or 21%.  

o The number of reported fixed route trips increased. Fixed route 
trips were up from 200,738 to 294,268, representing a 44% increase.   

o The number of paratransit trips decreased slightly.  These trips 
were down by 2% from 191,771 to 183,045.  The School Board did not 
report any trips for 2016. 

 Expense per passenger trip decreased. Expense per passenger trip 
decreased from $18.51 to $17.25, which is a 7% decrease. 

o Expense per paratransit trip increased.  The expense per paratransit 
trip increased from $37.87 to $44.99. 

o Expense per vehicle mile increased. The expense per vehicle mile 
increased from $3.50 to $5.52.  

o Expense per driver hour increased. The expense per driver hour 
increased slightly from $34.84 to $37.93. 

 Vehicle miles between road calls did not meet the set goal of 30,000 
miles.  The CTC reported 15,650 vehicle miles between road calls in 2016, up 
from the 11,028 miles reported in 2015.  This continues to be a concern of the 
CTC Evaluation Committee and will be monitored closely as the transition of 
vehicle maintenance is shifted from the County to Citrus Connection in Lakeland. 

 Accidents in 2016 increased slightly.  16 chargeable accidents were 
reported for 2016, which account for an average of 1.07 accidents per 100,000 
miles.  This is an increase from 2015. 

 Number of complaints remains low. The CTC received .0005 complaints per 
1,000 paratransit trips in 2016 – staying well below the goal of less than 2 per 
1,000 paratransit trips.  A total of 26 complaints were reported for 2015. Each 
complaint is investigated and processed internally to determine the source of the 
problem for a prompt resolution which resulted in no grievances being filed in 
the past year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 6 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Evaluation Committee Recommendations and Observations 

An evaluation committee consisting of Polk TPO staff and members of the Local 
Coordinating Board met twice to discuss the performance measure outcomes for FY 
2015/16.  The following recommendations are made to help improve performance over 
the next fiscal year.  Progress towards those recommendations will be measured during 
the FY 2016/2017 CTC evaluation. 

 

 Due to the consolidation and changes in the Polk CTC, the committee did not 
recommend any changes to the CTC’s goals, objectives, policies, or performance 
measures for 2016. However, they stated that the LCB will continue to monitor 
the performance measures that did not meet the goals, especially in the area of 
vehicle and equipment maintenance. 

 The CTC Evaluation Committee voiced deep concern regarding the $139,525.31 
that was left on the table at year end of the grant.  Unmet trip requests totaled 
1,208 with 1,174 being due to lack of capacity issues.  This area needs to be 
closely monitored in the upcoming year to ensure that the TD population is 
served adequately throughout Polk County. 

 During the evaluation process, TPO staff observed that CTC staff is in need of 
additional training in using the Trapeze software, specifically in the reporting 
area.  The database contains information of the location of the TD population 
throughout Polk County, which can be very useful in effectively coordinating 
transit services between the paratransit and fixed-route services offered by the 
CTC. 

 During the evaluation process, TPO staff observed that the CTC is in dire need of 
a TD Coordinator; a person who can go out into the community to coordinate 
transportation services with the public, the hospitals, the dialysis centers, and 
manage the TD program overall.  This is critical to the success of the TD 
program in order to identify the unmet needs in the community and implement 
services to transport individuals. 

 

 



 2
0
1
6
 
A

N
N

U
A

L
 
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
P

O
L
K

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
I
T

Y
 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
C

O
O

R
D

I
N

A
T

O
R

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7 

P
O

L
K

 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
O

R
G

A
N

I
Z

A
T

I
O

N
 
 

Ta
bl

e 
1.

 T
rip

 C
os

t b
y 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
at

eg
or

y 
– 

Al
l T

rip
s 

 
FY

 2
01

4/
20

15
 

FY
 2

01
5/

20
16

 
%

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 

Ex
pe

ns
es

 
To

ta
l T

rip
s 

3
9
2
,5

0
9

 
4
7
7
,3

1
3

 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
C

os
t/T

rip
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
os

t/T
rip

 
 

La
bo

r (
50

1)
 

$3
,7

41
,5

12
 

$9
.5

3 
$3

,8
85

,4
65

 
$8

.1
4 

-1
5%

 
Fr

in
ge

 B
en

ef
its

 (5
02

) 
$8

67
,6

32
 

$2
.2

1 
$8

53
,7

45
 

$1
.7

9 
-1

9%
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 (5
03

) 
$2

75
,2

96
 

$0
.7

0 
$3

87
,8

76
 

 
$0

.8
1 

14
%

 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

C
on

su
m

ed
 (5

04
) 

$1
,6

11
,0

81
 

$4
.1

0 
$1

,4
81

,3
07

 
$3

.1
0 

-2
4%

 
U

til
iti

es
 (5

05
) 

$1
56

,8
57

 
$0

.4
0 

$8
9,

61
6 

$0
.1

9 
-5

3%
 

C
as

ua
lty

 a
nd

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

os
ts

 (5
06

) 
$2

38
,8

88
 

$0
.6

1 
$1

68
,3

11
 

$0
.3

5 
-3

5%
 

Ta
xe

s 
(5

07
) 

$2
8,

56
0 

$0
.0

7 
$2

1,
54

1 
$0

.0
5 

-2
5%

 
Pu

rc
ha

se
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

 (5
08

) 
$4

9,
54

0 
$0

.1
3 

$1
7,

28
9 

$0
.0

4 
-6

9%
 

Le
as

es
 &

 R
en

ta
ls

 (5
12

) 
$8

,6
12

 
$0

.0
2 

$6
9,

68
4 

$0
.1

5 
20

%
 

An
nu

al
 D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

& 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
(5

13
) 

$5
4,

79
4 

$0
.1

4 
$3

05
,3

78
 

$0
.6

4 
78

%
 

O
th

er
 E

xp
en

se
s 

$2
29

,4
06

 
$0

.5
8 

$9
55

,4
68

 
$2

.0
0 

71
%

 
SY

ST
EM

 T
O

TA
L 

$7
,2

62
,1

78
 

$1
8.

50
 

$8
,2

35
,6

80
 

$1
7.

26
 

-7
%

 
  

  
 

Ta
bl

e 
2.

 F
Y 

20
16

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 - 

Pe
er

 C
om

pa
ris

on
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

 
Ta

rg
et

 
FY

 1
5/

16
 

FY
 1

4/
15

 
FY

 1
3/

14
 

FY
 1

2/
13

 
FY

 1
1/

12
 

Pe
er

1,
2 

A
ve

ra
ge

s 
St

at
ew

id
e2  

A
ve

ra
ge

 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

D
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
S

er
ve

d 
>=

9%
 

5.
83

%
 

6.
5%

 
9.

0%
 

12
.7

5%
 

12
.6

%
 

4.
67

%
 

5.
9%

 
Pe

rc
en

t o
f T

rip
s 

on
 F

ix
ed

-R
ou

te
 

(B
us

 P
as

se
s)

 
>=

25
%

 
61

%
 

51
%

 
45

.4
2%

 
49

.8
%

 
43

.7
%

 
28

.5
%

 
43

%
 

Av
er

ag
e 

C
os

t p
er

 T
rip

 
<=

$1
9.

00
 

$1
7.

25
 

$1
8.

50
 

$1
9.

99
 

$1
5.

39
 

$1
6.

70
 

$2
0.

27
 

$1
4.

08
 

Av
er

ag
e 

C
os

t p
er

 P
ar

at
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

 
<=

$2
9.

00
 

$4
4.

99
 

$3
7.

87
 

$3
6.

63
 

$3
0.

45
 

$2
9.

65
 

$2
4.

62
 

$2
1.

91
 

Ac
ci

de
nt

s 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 V
eh

ic
le

 
M

ile
s 

<1
.0

 
1.

07
 

.6
8 

.3
6 

0.
75

 
.3

9 
.4

8 
1.

40
 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

M
ile

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
R

oa
d 

C
al

ls
 

>=
30

,0
00

 
15

,6
50

 
11

,0
28

 
13

,3
14

 
14

,3
50

 
20

,8
46

 
37

,1
57

 
33

,4
66

 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

pe
r 1

,0
00

 P
ar

at
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

s 
<2

.0
 

.0
00

5 
.3

9 
.4

56
 

0.
14

4 
.2

25
 

.2
1 

.9
6 

1.
 P

ee
r C

ou
nt

ie
s:

 B
re

va
rd

, L
ee

, a
nd

 V
ol

us
ia

.  
2.

S
ta

te
w

id
e 

av
er

ag
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 M
ia

m
i-D

ad
e,

 w
hi

ch
 b

ec
au

se
 th

ey
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r 7
1%

 o
f a

ll 
C

TC
 fi

xe
d 

ro
ut

e 
tri

ps
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

st
at

ew
id

e 
an

d 
86

%
 o

f M
ia

m
i-

D
ad

e’
s 

to
ta

l C
TC

 tr
ip

s 
w

er
e 

re
po

rte
d 

as
 fi

xe
d-

ro
ut

e 
tri

ps
.  

Fo
r t

he
se

 re
as

on
s,

 d
at

a 
fo

r M
ia

m
i-D

ad
e 

m
ay

 d
is

to
rt 

st
at

ew
id

e 
av

er
ag

es
. 

 



 2
0
1
6
 
A

N
N

U
A

L
 
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
P

O
L
K

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
I
T

Y
 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
C

O
O

R
D

I
N

A
T

O
R

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8 

P
O

L
K

 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
O

R
G

A
N

I
Z

A
T

I
O

N
 
 

 
Ta

bl
e 

3.
 P

ee
r C

om
pa

ra
tiv

e 
D

at
a 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s1  

Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
y 

B
re

va
rd

 C
ou

nt
y 

Le
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Vo
lu

si
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nt
y 

Po
pu

la
tio

n 
62

6,
78

7 
55

6,
88

5 
67

9,
51

3 
50

7,
53

1 
Po

te
nt

ia
l T

D
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
23

2,
66

0 
25

8,
31

3 
25

6,
56

0 
28

8,
60

8 
Pa

ss
en

ge
rs

 (U
PH

C
) 

13
,4

09
 

17
,0

48
 

2,
60

0 
21

,5
42

 
Fi

xe
d-

R
ou

te
 R

id
er

sh
ip

 (B
us

 P
as

se
s)

 
29

4,
26

8 
42

8,
64

0 
66

0 
26

1,
12

1 
C

TC
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

$8
,2

35
,6

80
 

$5
,4

69
,2

61
 

$3
,6

22
,8

12
 

$6
,6

80
,7

72
 

     
Ta

bl
e 

4.
 P

ee
r A

ve
ra

ge
s 

FY
 2

01
6 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

 
B

re
va

rd
 C

ou
nt

y 
(S

pa
ce

 C
oa

st
 A

re
a 

Tr
an

si
t) 

Le
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

(G
oo

d 
W

he
el

s,
 In

c.
) 

Vo
lu

si
a 

C
ou

nt
y 

(V
O

TR
A

N
) 

Pe
er

 A
ve

ra
ge

 
FY

 2
01

2 

Po
te

nt
ia

l T
D

 P
op

ul
at

io
n 

25
8,

31
3 

25
6,

56
0 

28
8,

60
8 

26
7,

82
7 

Po
te

nt
ia

l T
D

 P
op

ul
at

io
n 

S
er

ve
d 

6.
5%

 
.0

1%
 

7.
5%

 
4.

67
%

 
Pe

rc
en

t o
f T

rip
s 

on
 F

ix
ed

-R
ou

te
 

40
.4

%
 

.0
08

 
45

%
 

28
.5

%
 

Av
er

ag
e 

C
os

t p
er

 T
rip

 
$5

.1
6 

$4
4.

19
 

$1
1.

47
 

$2
0.

27
 

Av
er

ag
e 

C
os

t p
er

 P
ar

at
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

 
$8

.5
7 

$4
4.

52
 

$2
0.

77
 

$2
4.

62
 

Ac
ci

de
nt

s 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s 
1.

05
 

.2
6 

.1
4 

.4
8 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

M
ile

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
R

oa
d 

C
al

ls
 

67
,2

08
 

32
,5

26
 

11
,7

36
 

37
,1

57
 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

pe
r 1

,0
00

 P
ar

at
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

s 
.0

1 
.6

1 
.0

01
 

.2
1 

  

     



 2
0
1
6
 
A

N
N

U
A

L
 
E

V
A

L
U

A
T

I
O

N
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
P

O
L
K

 
C

O
M

M
U

N
I
T

Y
 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
C

O
O

R
D

I
N

A
T

O
R

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9 

P
O

L
K

 
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

I
O

N
 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G
 
O

R
G

A
N

I
Z

A
T

I
O

N
 
 

 
Ta

bl
e 

5.
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 C

TC
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 F

Y 
20

11
 - 

FY
 2

01
6 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

 
FY

 1
5/

16
 

FY
 1

4/
15

 
FY

 1
3/

14
 

FY
 1

2/
13

 
FY

 1
1/

12
 

FY
 1

0/
11

 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

 
$8

,2
08

,1
59

 
$7

,2
65

,9
54

 
$8

,9
89

,9
40

 
$8

,6
74

,8
60

 
$8

,5
21

,3
44

 
$9

,9
04

,2
37

 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 

$8
,2

35
,6

80
 

$7
,2

62
,1

78
 

$8
,5

11
,0

29
 

$8
,5

13
,6

44
 

$8
,4

63
,0

33
 

$9
,8

42
,0

18
 

To
ta

l P
as

se
ng

er
 T

rip
s 

47
7,

31
3 

39
2,

50
9 

42
5,

55
9 

55
3,

36
4 

50
6,

64
2 

51
5,

26
8 

Ex
pe

ns
es

 p
er

 P
as

se
ng

er
 T

rip
 

$1
7.

25
 

$1
8.

50
 

$1
9.

99
 

$1
5.

39
 

$1
6.

70
 

$1
9.

10
 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

M
ile

s 
1,

49
0,

81
4 

2,
07

3,
34

6 
2,

48
9,

76
6 

2,
53

9,
93

4 
2,

39
7,

37
1 

2,
29

5,
83

4 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
pe

r V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

 
$5

.5
2 

$3
.5

0 
$3

.1
4 

$3
.3

3 
$3

.5
3 

$4
.2

8 
D

riv
er

 H
ou

rs
 

21
7,

11
8 

20
8,

45
7 

25
2,

52
1 

25
0,

52
2 

26
4,

99
1 

21
9,

34
0 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
pe

r D
riv

er
 

H
ou

r 
$3

7.
93

 
$3

4.
84

 
 

$3
3.

70
 

 
$3

3.
76

 
 

$3
1.

93
 

$4
7.

37
 

To
ta

l P
ar

at
ra

ns
it 

Tr
ip

s 
18

3,
04

5 
19

1,
77

1 
23

2,
30

0 
27

3,
65

8 
28

5,
38

8 
29

2,
71

4 
Pe

rc
en

t o
f T

rip
s 

as
 

Pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
39

%
 

 
49

%
 

 
54

.5
8%

 
 

49
.4

5%
 

 
56

.3
2%

 
56

.8
0%

 

To
ta

l F
ix

ed
-R

ou
te

 T
rip

s 
29

4,
26

8 
20

0,
73

8 
19

3,
25

9 
27

5,
55

9 
22

1,
25

4 
22

2,
55

4 
Pe

rc
en

t o
f T

rip
s 

as
 F

ix
ed

-
R

ou
te

 
61

%
 

 
51

%
 

 
45

.4
2%

 
 

49
.8

%
 

 
43

.6
7%

 
43

.1
9%

 

To
ta

l S
ch

oo
l B

oa
rd

 T
rip

s 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
Pe

rc
en

t o
f T

rip
s 

as
 S

ch
oo

l 
Bo

ar
d 

 
0%

 
 

0%
 

 
0%

 
 

0%
 

 
0%

 
0%

 

 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 10 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 3. Compliance with Chapter 427, F.S. 
Review the CTC monitoring of its contracted operators in compliance with FS 
427. 

WHAT TYPE OF MONITORING DOES THE CTC PERFORM ON ITS OPERATOR(S) AND 
COORDINATION CONTRACTORS AND HOW OFTEN IS IT CONDUCTED? 

The CTC is responsible for assuring that operators and contractors are monitored at 
least once a year. The Polk County Board of County Commissioners has a contract 
monitoring process in place to evaluate the Polk County Transit Services Division, its 
coordination contractors and transportation operators. Contract compliance monitoring 
within the Polk County Coordinated System is done by an independent contract and 
compliance officer employed by Polk County government but not by the Transit Services 
Division/CTC.  The monitor has been employed with government for over 17 years, 
extensively educated and trained in all areas of transportation, and performs monitoring 
and audit functions for the Florida Department of Transportation, the Federal Transit 
Administration, Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and many other local, state, 
and federal agencies.  The monitoring reports that were completed during this reporting 
period are attached as part of the final evaluation report.  Because the LAMTD is 
operating transportation services through a contract with the Polk County BOCC, this 
monitoring has continued throughout and after the transition of operations from the 
BOCC to LAMTD. 

IS A WRITTEN REPORT ISSUED TO THE OPERATOR?  Yes, as necessary.   

IS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS SECTION? Yes. 

Review the TDSP to determine the utilization of school buses and public 
transportation services.  Approve and coordinate the utilization of school bus 
and public transportation services in accordance with the TDSP. 

IS THE CTC USING SCHOOL BUSES IN THE COORDINATED SYSTEM?  

No.  The Polk County School Board has drastically reduced its services due to their 
funding constraints.  For FY 2015/2016 the School Board did not submit a report of trips 
to the CTC for inclusion in the AOR. 

HOW IS THE CTC USING PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION SERVICES IN THE COORDINATED 
SYSTEM? 

Service contracts exist with the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (LAMTD to provide 
transportation for several public and private agencies.  Bus passes from both fixed route 
systems are utilized whenever and wherever feasible to lower the cost of the trips.  

IS THERE A GOAL FOR TRANSFERRING PASSENGERS FROM PARATRANSIT TO 
TRANSIT? Yes   

IF YES, WHAT IS THE GOAL?  25% of total annual trips. 

  

IS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS REQUIREMENT?  



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 11 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Yes. The FY 2015/16 AOR reported that 61% of trips were provided by fixed route 
public transit. 

Attachments to this report:  Monitoring Report and Safety Compliance Reports for the 
following providers:  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District. 

  

Area of Noncompliance:  None 

Recommendation:  None 

Timeline for Compliance:  None   



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 12 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 4. Compliance with 41-2, F.A.C. 
Compliance with 41-2.006(1), Minimum Insurance Compliance Ensure 
compliance with the minimum liability insurance requirement of $200,000 
per person and $300,000 per incident. 

WHAT ARE THE MINIMUM LIABILITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS IN THE OPERATOR 
AND COORDINATION CONTRACTS? 

The adopted TDSP standards are that the CTC shall ensure compliance with the 
minimum liability insurance requirement of $200,000 per person and $300,000 per 
incident, which are comparable to Section 768.28(5), Florida Statutes, limits, for all 
transportation services purchased or provided for the transportation disadvantaged 
through the CTC. The CTC will indemnify and hold harmless the Local, State, and 
Federal governments and their entities, departments, and the Commission from any 
liabilities arising out of or due to an accident or negligence on the part of the CTC and 
all Transportation Operators under contract to them. Any liability insurance coverage in 
excess of $1 million per incident, where its cost is included in the service rate, must be 
approved by the Commission before its cost is included in any purchase of service 
contract. Documentation from the Community Transportation Coordinator must fully 
justify the need for the additional insurance coverage. The justification will identify the 
reasons for the additional coverage, the incremental cost of the additional coverage on 
each unit of transportation service and the estimated additional annual cost to each 
contracting agency/entity. The Polk County Coordinated System has established a 
$300,000/combined single limit. 

HOW MUCH DOES THE INSURANCE COST? $168,311.00 for Casualty & Liability 

DOES THE MINIMUM LIABILITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS EXCEED $1 MILLION PER 
INCIDENT? No 

IS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS SECTION? Yes 

Compliance with 42-2.011(2), Evaluating Cost-Effectiveness of Coordination 
Contractors and Transportation Alternatives. Contracts shall be reviewed 
annually by the CTC and the Coordinating Board as to the effectiveness and 
efficiency of the Transportation Operator or the renewal of any Coordination 
Contracts. 

IF THE CTC HAS COORDINATION CONTRACTORS, DETERMINE THE COST-
EFFECTIVENESS OF THESE CONTRACTORS.  

At the time the CTC receives applications for funding under Federal Transit 
Administration Section 5310, the CTC reviews the reasonableness of the application and 
whether or not the trips could be provided by the CTC.  Coordination contracts are only 
extended to those agencies that can provide transportation more efficiently and cost 
effectively. Coordination contracts are then reviewed prior to renewal. As operator 
contracts expire, each existing operator has an opportunity to renew their contract, 
based upon contract fulfillment.  An evaluation of each operator is completed by 
determining satisfactory contract compliance.  



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 13 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

IS THE CTC IN COMPLIANCE WITH THIS SECTION? Yes. 

 

Area of Noncompliance:  None 

Recommendation:  None 

Timeline for Compliance:  None 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 14 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 5. Level of Competition 
 

Table 6. Inventory of Transportation Operators in the Service Area 
 Operators Available Operators Contracted 

in the System 

Private Non-Profit 10 8 

Private For-Profit 5 0 

Government 2 2 

Public Transit Agency 1 1 

Total 20 11 

 
HOW MANY OF THE OPERATORS ARE COORDINATION CONTRACTORS?  8. 

OF THE OPERATORS INCLUDED IN THE LOCAL COORDINATED SYSTEM, HOW MANY 
HAVE THE CAPABILITY OF EXPANDING CAPACITY? None (due to constrained funding). 

DOES THE CTC HAVE THE ABILITY TO EXPAND?   No (Lack of sufficient funding). 

INDICATE THE DATE THE LATEST TRANSPORTATION OPERATOR WAS BROUGHT INTO 
THE SYSTEM. FY 2001. 

DOES THE CTC HAVE A COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT PROCESS? Yes. 

IN THE PAST FIVE (5) YEARS, HOW MANY TIMES HAVE THE FOLLOWING METHODS 
BEEN USED IN SELECTION OF THE TRANSPORTATION OPERATORS? 

Table 7. Transportation Operators Selection Method (Past 5 Years) 
 Low bid  1 Requests for proposals 

1 Requests for qualifications  1 Requests for interested parties 

 Negotiation only    

 
WHICH OF THE METHODS WAS USED TO SELECT THE CURRENT OPERATORS? 

Requests for Qualifications/Requests for Proposals are conducted as necessary unless 
an emergency or need arises to conduct the process earlier.   



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 15 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

WHICH OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE INCORPORATED IN THE REVIEW AND 
SELECTION OF TRANSPORTATION OPERATORS FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
COORDINATED SYSTEM?  

All of the following items are incorporated. 

Table 8. Transportation Operators Selection Criteria  
X Capabilities of operator  X Scope of Work 

X Age of company  X Safety Program 

X Previous experience  X Capacity 

X Management  X Training Program 

X Qualifications of staff  X Insurance 

X Resources  X Accident History 

X Economies of Scale  X Quality 

X Contract Monitoring  X Community Knowledge 

X Reporting Capabilities  X Cost of the Contracting Process 

X Financial Strength  X Price 

X Performance Bond  X Distribution of Costs 

X Responsiveness to Solicitation   Other: (list) 

 
IF A COMPETITIVE BID OR REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS HAS BEEN USED TO SELECT 
THE TRANSPORTATION OPERATORS, TO HOW MANY POTENTIAL OPERATORS WAS 
THE REQUEST DISTRIBUTED IN THE MOST RECENTLY COMPLETED PROCESS?  Polk 
County’s Purchasing Division oversees the bid process and all bids are placed on the 
Board of County Commissioner’s website. 

HOW MANY RESPONDED?  3. 

THE REQUEST FOR BIDS/PROPOSALS WAS DISTRIBUTED:  

 

X Locally X Statewide X Nationally  
(Available via 

Website) 

 
HAS THE CTC REVIEWED THE POSSIBILITIES OF COMPETITIVELY CONTRACTING ANY 
SERVICES OTHER THAN TRANSPORTATION PROVISION (SUCH AS FUEL & 
MAINTENANCE?  Yes, this is handled through contract with the Polk County Board of 
County Commissioners, Fleet Maintenance Division, a member of a fuel consortium.  
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District performs their own fleet maintenance on vehicles 
which is more cost efficient due to their training, expertise, and compliance with 
regulations in this area. 

 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 16 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 6. Level of Coordination 
EVALUATE THE DEGREE OF COORDINATION OF TD TRANSPORTATION CONSIDERING 
BOTH THE CTC AND THE COMMUNITY AS A WHOLE. 

1.  HOW MANY OPERATORS ARE INCLUDED IN THE COORDINATED SYSTEM? 

The CTC currently performs all of the trips within the coordinated system.  They are in 
the process of contracting with one of their coordination agencies to assist in TD trips 
when necessary to meet capacity issues. 

 

2.  WITH HOW MANY AGENCIES DOES THE CTC HAVE A COORDINATION AND/OR 
SERVICE CONTRACT? 

Eight agencies:  ElderPoint Ministries, Faith In Action North Lakeland, Noah’s Ark of 
Central Florida, Peace River Center, Polk Training Center for Handicapped Citizens, 
Southeast Christian Assemblies of God, and Wade & Coney Community Center, Alliance 
for Independence.   

 

ARE THE FOLLOWING AREAS HIGHLY COORDINATED? 

3.  PLANNING - ARE PLANS FOR TRANSPORTING THE TD POPULATION 
COORDINATED? 

 X= Yes O No 

 The CTC operates the Regional Mobility Call Center (RMCC) for assessing the mobility 
needs of the transportation disadvantaged to provide services through all modes and 
areas for Polk residents.  The CTC uses eligibility criteria to determine needs and 
eligibility.  TD trip purposes are prioritized annually based on the available funding and 
the areas of most need.  Additionally, the CTC has coordinated with two non-profit 
volunteer agencies to share resources and have the agencies utilize the Trapeze 
database for reporting and tracking purposes.  

  

4.  PUBLIC INFORMATION - IS THE INFORMATION DISTRIBUTED ABOUT 
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES IN THE COMMUNITY COORDINATED?  

 X= Yes O No  

Through websites, agency networks, LCB membership and community outreach efforts.  
Also, the transit agencies were consolidated in Polk County, and adopted a unique, 
single branding for fixed route and paratransit services which creates a single, 
coordinated transportation system. 

 

5.   CERTIFICATION - IS THE WAY IN WHICH INDIVIDUALS ARE CERTIFIED AND 
REGISTERED FOR LOCAL TD TRANSPORTATION SERVICES COORDINATED?  



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 17 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

 X= Yes O No  

Determination of eligibility is required.  In person intake assessments are performed 
and required documentation is presented at the time of the interview.  Self-declarations 
are not permitted. 

 

6.  ELIGIBILITY RECORDS - DOES A SYSTEM EXIST TO COORDINATE WHICH 
INDIVIDUALS ARE ELIGIBLE FOR WHICH SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION SERVICES IN 
THE COMMUNITY?  

 X= Yes O No  

Trapeze software documents eligibility for various funding programs on the client 
information screen as well as the trip booking screen. 

 

7.  CALL INTAKE - ARE TRANSPORTATION SERVICES COORDINATED TO THE EXTENT 
THAT USERS CAN REACH A RESERVATIONIST ON THE FIRST CALL?   

 X= Yes O No  

CTC utilizes an automated call distribution telecommunications system, with menu 
selection options for appropriately directing calls.  The CTC operates a one-call, one-
click call center. 

 

8.  RESERVATIONS - IS THE WAY IN WHICH RESERVATIONS ARE PLACED 
STANDARDIZED AND CAN A RESERVATIONISTS PREVENT DUPLICATE RESERVATIONS 
WITH DIFFERENT CARRIERS?   

 X= Yes O No  

Trapeze scheduling and dispatching software is utilized by all providers in real time; 
pop-up features prevent duplication of trips. 

 

9. TRIP ALLOCATION - IS THE ALLOCATION OF TRIP REQUESTS TO 
TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS COORDINATED?  

  X= Yes O No  

Trapeze scheduling and dispatching software is utilized by all providers in real time and 
trips are assigned based on demand, available funding, least cost or available 
resources. 

 

10. SCHEDULING - IS THE ASSIGNMENT OF TRIPS TO VEHICLES COORDINATED IN 
SOME WAY? 

 X= Yes O No  



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 18 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Using Trapeze scheduling and administrative software. 

 

11. TRANSPORT - ARE THE ACTUAL TRANSPORTATION SERVICE AND MODES OF 
TRANSPORTATION COORDINATED? 

X= Yes O No  

Using Trapeze scheduling and administrative software for paratransit and Trapeze fixed 
route modules to identify all potential modes of transportation.  All intake and 
scheduling is done through the CTC’s Regional Mobility Call Center. 

 

12. DISPATCHING - IS THE REAL TIME COMMUNICATION AND DIRECTION OF 
DRIVERS COORDINATED?  

 X= Yes O No  

Trapeze Software – Live, real time dispatching is performed, and also communicate 
with drivers via cell phone. 

 

13. General Service Monitoring - Is the over-seeing of the transportation providers 
coordinated? 

 X= Yes O No  

Scheduled 14-90 monitoring is performed by a Contract and Program Compliance 
Specialist, as previously described in this report. 

 

14. DAILY SERVICE MONITORING - IS THE WAY IN WHICH TRIP PROBLEMS ARE 
RESOLVED IN REAL-TIME COORDINATED? 

X= Yes O No  

With Trapeze scheduling, dispatching and administrative software, daily activity is 
monitored by the CTC with the status of all trips being performed in the database. 

 

15. TRIP RECONCILIATION - IS THE WAY IN WHICH ALL COMPLETED TRIPS ARE 
CONFIRMED FOR OFFICIAL COUNTS COORDINATED?    

 X= Yes O No  

Trapeze reports are utilized for trip verification and reconciliation.  All post processing is 
done by the Finance Unit.  The rider is required to sign the manifest and all signatures 
are verified by the Finance Unit for 100% verification process. 

 

16. BILLING - IS THE PROCESS FOR REQUESTING AND PROCESSING FARES, 
PAYMENTS, AND REIMBURSEMENTS COORDINATED?  



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 19 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

 X= Yes O No  

All trip activity is verified and entries matched with the Trapeze database.  All post-
processing, invoices and reimbursements are submitted and process through the 
Finance Unit. 

 

17. REPORTING - IS OPERATING INFORMATION REPORTED ACCORDING TO A SET OF 
STANDARD DEFINITIONS, COMPILED, AND EXAMINED?   

 X= Yes O No  

Per the 14-90 standards, AOR and NTD requirements, and as outlined in the TDSP.  
Quarterly performance reports are reviewed at the LCB meetings. 

 

18. COSTS RESOURCES - ARE COSTS, WHICH MUST BE INCURRED BY MANY OR ALL 
OF THE TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS, SHARED SO AS TO REDUCE THE OVERALL 
COSTS OF THE COORDINATED PROGRAM? 

 X= Yes O No  

Providers under coordination contracts are non-profit agencies and may be able to 
benefit from the FDOT Section 5310 Capital Assistance program. 

19. INFORMATION RESOURCES - IS INFORMATION SHARED REGULARLY WITH ALL 
ORGANIZATIONS INVOLVED SO THAT THEY MAY HAVE A SIMILAR BASE OF 
KNOWLEDGE WHICH SMOOTHES SERVICE PROVISION AND INCREASES THE 
COORDINATION OF OTHER ELEMENTS?   

 X= Yes O No  

Through LCB and transportation related board activities as well as through community 
workshops and public events.  CTC contracted agencies share information through 
meetings which are usually scheduled on a quarterly basis. 

 

20. OVERALL - DOES THE CTC HAVE AN APPROVED CONTRACT OR FORMAL 
AGREEMENT WITH ORGANIZATIONS, WHICH PROVIDE TRANSPORTATION IN THE 
COMMUNITY?  

 X= Yes O No 

The CTC has coordination agreements with several non-profit agencies that have 
requested to be part of the coordinated system.  This includes agencies that provide 
volunteer transportation services and not-for-profit organizations that serve 
disadvantaged populations. 

 

21. HOW MANY OF THE ABOVE ELEMENTS OF TRANSPORTATION (NUMBER OF YES'S) 
ARE HIGHLY COORDINATED: 20 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 20 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

22. WHICH TRANSPORTATION OPERATORS NEED TO BE BETTER COORDINATED 
WHEN COMPARED TO THE OTHERS?  IN WHAT WAYS? 

All of the current paratransit operators have the option to be coordinated under the CTC 
utilizing the Trapeze scheduling and administrative software.  In contrast, several of the 
non-profit coordination contract agencies lack the technical resources to become fully 
integrated with Trapeze at this time. 

Coordination efforts due to the consolidation of operations under one agency continue 
to be very effective.  With the implementation of a single phone number and the 
opening of a one-call, one-click regional mobility call center in May of 2013, customers 
now have a one-stop shop for their mobility needs. 

 

23. OF THE AGENCIES THAT THE COORDINATOR HAS COORDINATION OR SERVICE 
CONTRACTS WITH, WHICH COULD BE BETTER COORDINATED, WHEN COMPARED TO 
THE OTHERS? IN WHAT WAYS? 

The addition of more non-profit agencies to combine efforts with the lead agency, 
ElderPoint Ministries (Blue Bird) Volunteer Driver Program, who endeavors to reach out 
to other nonprofits throughout the county to provide transportation through volunteer 
drivers and gives additional access to services for more of the transportation 
disadvantaged populations.  With ElderPoint’s recent integration into Trapeze, this 
allows better tracking and reporting capabilities for data. 

 

24. WHAT IMPROVEMENTS IN COORDINATION COULD BE PURSUED? 

The CTC is currently coordinating with ElderPoint Ministries (Blue Bird) Volunteer Driver 
Program and VISTE in utilizing the Trapeze database.  This effort needs to be continued 
and expanded with similar agencies countywide.  Unfortunately, due to Medicaid reform 
and the changes brought to the coordinated system in Florida, the sharing of resources 
and human service agency coordination will be essential. 

Attachment to this report: 

CTC Self-Evaluation Report – 12/27/16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 21 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 7. Americans with Disabilities Act 
In addition to being the CTC for Polk County, LAMTD operates the fixed-route bus 
services operated in the greater Winter Haven urbanized area in the eastern portion of 
Polk County, as well as in the Lakeland urbanized area. 

This provides the opportunity to multi-load ADA passengers with TD and other 
passengers, which results in a more cost-effective operation.  ADA services are provided 
for those who qualify under ADA and are within three-quarters of a mile from a bus 
stop in the fixed-route service area. 

Area of noncompliance:  None 

Recommendation:  None 

Timeline for Compliance:  None 

 

 

Section 8. Bus/Van Ride 
The LCB members on the CTC Evaluation Subcommittee actively participated in the on-
site observation surveys of the system by riding along with the providers in providing 
transportation disadvantaged trips. 

 During the on-site observation rides conducted by the LCB members, the 
following observations were made by the LCB members: 

The first LCB member rode along on the CTC’s vehicle on January 13, 2017.  The 
first driver he encountered did not render an appropriate greeting, and could not 
tell if the driver was wearing the proper identification as they had on a jacket 
due to the weather.  The driver did not check to see if they had buckled their 
seat belt and did not observe a sign posted on the interior for 
complaints/comments/commendations.  However, they did note that the vehicle 
was clean and everything was in working order.  The LCB member’s second 
driver was very friendly, wore identification, and the vehicle was neat and clean.  
In both instances, the vehicle arrived on-time. 

 The second LCB member conducted their on-site observation ride on January 18, 
2017.  They noted that the vehicle was clean and in good working order.  
However, they did not see the Ombudsman sign on either vehicle (2) they rode 
on.  They observed that after picking them up on one side of town, they traveled 
all across town to the next pickup, and in addition, the vehicles were not multi-
loaded.  This poses the general question of coordinating the trips in an efficient 
manner. 

 The third LCB member’s ride is pending at this time. 

 

 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 22 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

The completed On-Site Observation Forms are attached to this report  

 

Areas of Noncompliance:  None 

Recommendations:  To again inspect all vehicles to ensure the proper signage is 
located in a visible spot in vehicles. 

Timeline for Compliance: Staff will follow-up and report back to LCB. 

  

 

 

Section 9. Surveys 
 
RIDER SURVEYS 
 
The LCB Evaluation Subcommittee also conducted random telephone surveys.  The 
survey forms are included in this report.  A summary of the results are as follows: 

 
Summary of Rider Survey 
 

Name of 
Program 
Funding 
Source 

Number 
of Trips 

by 
Program 

Number of 
Riders 

/Beneficiaries 
Contacted by 

Program 

Number of 
Riders 

/Beneficiarie
s 

Experiencing 
a Problem 

Number of 
Riders 

/Beneficiaries 
refused 

transportation 
within last 6 

months 

Rate the ride 
on a scale of 

1 to 10 (10 
being most 
satisfied) 

CTD 4 4 0 0 10 

Medicaid 0 0 0 0 0 

FX RT 
ADA 

4 4 0 0 5 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 8 8 0 0 N/A 

 
 

CONTRACT OPERATOR SURVEYS 
 
The CTC had no contract operators that actually provided trips during the reporting 
period. 
 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 23 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

 
PURCHASING AGENCY SURVEYS 
 

o Do you purchase transportation from the coordinated system? 
Purchasing Agency – Polk County Community Health and Social Services; 
Polk County Elderly Services.         

o Which transportation operator provides services to your clients?  
Purchasing Agency – CTC vehicles 

 
o What is the primary purpose of purchasing transportation for your 

clients? 
Purchasing Agency – Medical, medical related, and critical life skills 
purposes. 

 
o On average, how often do your clients use the transportation 

system? 
 Purchasing Agency – 5 days per week on most occasions. 

 
o Have you had any unresolved problems with the coordinated 

transportation system? 
Purchasing Agency – none that are unresolved; we work closely with the 
CTC to resolve any issues as they arise. 

 
o What type of problems have you had with the coordinated system? 

Purchasing Agency – Transition from County will increase our costs and 
force us to find alternative sources for the Rohr Home social outings. 
 

o Overall, are you satisfied with the transportation you have purchased 
for your clients? 

 The Purchasing Agency – Yes for the most part. 
Attachments to this report: 
 
Survey forms completed by LCB Evaluation Committee Members. 
 
 
Area of Noncompliance:  None 
Recommendation:  None 
Timeline for Compliance:  None 
 
 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 24 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 10. Follow-up of previous QAPE Review (if applicable) 
  
It was observed by the Committee members that the vehicles used for their on-site 
observation ride-alongs did not contain the appropriate signage for the phone numbers 
to the Commission or the CTC in 2015.  Because this had occurred a second time, the 
CTC Evaluation Committee has made a recommended a corrective action to be 
completed no later than May 9, 2016.  The CTC reported to the LCB that this was 
corrected at the LCB meeting in September, 2016. 
 
Area of Noncompliance:  None 
Recommendation:  None 
Timeline for Compliance:  None 
 
 

Section 11. Additional Observations 
The Polk CTC continues to think “outside the box” for ways to implement innovative 
ideas in coordinating transportation services throughout Polk County. 
 
While the CTC took the initial lead in the introduction of a new volunteer driver program, 
it is now the non-profit organization ElderPoint Ministries that has taken oversight and is 
the designated recipient of funds.  This new program is call Blue Bird and not only helps 
the Polk CTC in the delivery of quality, cost-efficient transportation services for its 
clients, but benefits other non-profit organizations such as United Way, Viste, etc.   
 
 
 
Section 12. Current Year Trip and Equipment Grant 
The Trip and Equipment grant for Polk County ran from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 
2016 in the total amount of $1,321,387.00.  All funding was originally designated for the 
provision of TD services.  However, due to the transition from the BOCC to LAMTD 
effective April 1, 2016, LAMTD requested to use some funding to purchase capital 
equipment before the end of the grant cycle on June 30, 2016.  Even so, a total of 
$139,525.31 was not billed and subsequently forfeited for this funding year. 
 
The Trip and Equipment grant for the Polk CTC for FY 2016/2017 is in the amount of 
$1,378,393.00 with $374,409.00 requested for capital and $1,003,984.00 for 
transportation services. 
 
Area of noncompliance:  None 
Recommendation:  None 
Timeline for Compliance:  None 



 

2016 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE POLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR                 25 

POLK TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION  

Section 13. Appendices 
 
Attachments included in this document: 
1. CTC Self-Evaluation 
2.  Monitoring Reports 
3.  Survey forms 
 



CTC Self Evaluation Questionnaire – 2015 

  1 

Polk TPO 

CTC SELF-EVALUATION  

LEVEL OF COORDINATION – Polk County CTC – Date:__27 Dec 2016___ 

 
Evaluate the degree of coordination of TD transportation considering both the 
CTC and the community as a whole. 
 
1.  How many operators are included in the coordinated system? 

 
 Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  
  
2.  With how many agencies does the CTC have a coordination and/or 

service contract? 
  

Eight (8) 
Alliance for Independence 
ElderPoint Ministries 
Faith in Action, N. Lakeland 
Noah’s Ark of Central Florida 
Peace River Center 
Polk Training Center  
Southeast Christian Assemblies of God 
Wade and Coney Community Center 

  
 
Are the following areas highly coordinated? 
 
3.  Planning - Are plans for transporting the TD population coordinated? 

 
Yes; the CTC operates a Regional Mobility Call Center for assessing the 
mobility needs of the transportation disadvantaged to provide services 
through all modes and areas for Polk residents.  The CTC uses eligibility 
criteria to determine needs and eligibility.  TD trip purposes are prioritized 
annually based on the available funding and the areas of most need. 
Additionally, the CTC has coordinated with two non-profit volunteer 
agencies to share resources and have the agencies utilize the Trapeze 
database for reporting and tracking purposes.  

 
   
   
4.  Public Information - Is the information distributed about transportation 

services in the community coordinated?  
 
Yes; through websites, agency networks, LCB membership and 
community outreach efforts. Also, the two Transit agencies in Polk 
adopted a unique, single branding for fixed route and paratransit services 



CTC Self Evaluation Questionnaire – 2015 

  2 

Polk TPO 

which creates the image of a single, coordinated transportation system 
(Fixed = Polk Transit   Paratransit = PT Connect). 

 
  
5.   Certification - Is the way in which individuals are certified and registered 

for local TD transportation services coordinated?  
  

Yes; determination of eligibility is required; In person intake assessments 
are performed and required documentation is presented at the time of the 
interview, as self-declarations are not permitted. 

 
6.  Eligibility Records - Does a system exist to coordinate which individuals 

are eligible for which special transportation services in the community?  
 

Yes; Trapeze Client Services Database is utilized to document eligibility   
 
7.  Call Intake - Are transportation services coordinated to the extent that 

users can reach a reservationist on the first call?   
 
Yes; CTC utilizes an automated call distribution telecommunications 
system, with menu selection options for appropriately directing calls. The 
CTC operates a Regional Mobility Call Center. 

 
 
8.  Reservations - Is the way in which reservations are placed standardized 

and can a reservationist prevent duplicate reservations with different 
carriers? 

  
 Yes; Trapeze scheduling and dispatching software is utilized by all 
 providers in real time; pop-up features prevents duplication of trips 
    
9. Trip Allocation - Is the allocation of trip requests to transportation providers 

coordinated?  
   

Yes; Trapeze scheduling and dispatching software is utilized by all 
providers in real time and trips are assigned based on demand, available 
funding, least cost or available resources.  

 
10. Scheduling - Is the assignment of trips to vehicles coordinated in some 

way? 
  
 Yes; using Trapeze Scheduling and Administrative software.  
 
11. Transport - Are the actual transportation service and modes of 

transportation coordinated? 
 



CTC Self Evaluation Questionnaire – 2015 

  3 

Polk TPO 

Yes; Using Trapeze Scheduling and Administrative software for 
paratransit and Trapeze Fixed Route modules to identify all potential 
modes of transport.  All intake and scheduling is done through the CTC’s 
Regional Mobility Call Center.    

 
12. Dispatching - Is the real time communication and direction of drivers 

coordinated?  
  

Yes; using Trapeze – Live, real time dispatching is performed. Contracted 
 Operators also utilize Trapeze and communicate with drivers via cell 
 phone.  

 
 

13. General Service Monitoring - Is the over-seeing of the transportation 
providers coordinated? 

  
Yes; scheduled 14-90 monitoring is performed by a Contract and Program 

 Compliance Specialist.    
 
14. Daily Service Monitoring - Is the way in which trip problems are resolved in 

real-time coordinated? 
 

Yes; With Trapeze Scheduling, Dispatching and Administrative software, 
daily  activity is monitored by the CTC with the status of all trips being 
performed  in the database. 
 
 

15. Trip Reconciliation - Is the way in which all completed trips are confirmed 
for official counts coordinated?  

  
Yes; Trapeze reports are utilized for trip verification and reconciliation. 

 All post processing is done by the Human Services Finance Unit. 
 

 
16. Billing - Is the process for requesting and processing fares, payments, and 

reimbursements coordinated?  
  

Yes; all trip activity is verified and entries matched with the Trapeze 
database. All post-processing, invoices and reimbursements are 
submitted and process through the Human Services Finance Unit.   

 
17. Reporting - Is operating information reported according to a set of 

standard definitions, compiled, and examined?   
  



CTC Self Evaluation Questionnaire – 2015 

  4 

Polk TPO 

Yes; per the 14-90 Standards, AOR and NTD requirements, and as 
outlined in the TDSP.  Quarterly performance reports are reviewed at the 
LCB meetings.  

 
18. Costs Resources - Are costs, which must be incurred by many or all of the 

transportation providers, shared so as to reduce the overall costs of the 
coordinated program? 

 
Yes; - Providers under coordination contracts are non-profit agencies and 

 may be able to benefit from the FDOT Section 5310 Capital Assistance 
 program. Additionally, subsidized providers who transport clients into their 
 agency programs are reimbursed at a lower, usually flat rate per trip. 

 
  
 

19. Information Resources - Is information shared regularly with all 
organizations involved so that they may have a similar base of knowledge 
which stream-lines service provision and increases the coordination of 
other elements?     
 
Yes; through LCB and transportation related board activities as well as 

 through community workshops and public events. CTC contracted 
 agencies share information through Operator’s meetings which are usually 
 scheduled on a quarterly basis.  

 
 
20. Overall - Does the CTC have an approved contract or formal agreement 

with organizations, which provide transportation in the community?  
 
Yes; The CTC has coordination agreements will several non-profit 

 agencies that have requested to be part of the coordinated system. This 
 includes agencies that provide volunteer transportation services and not-
 for-profit organizations that serve disadvantaged populations.   
  

 
21. How many of the above elements of transportation (number of Yes's) are 

highly coordinated:   
  
 20 
  
 
22. Which transportation operators need to be better coordinated when 

compared to the others?   
 

All of the current paratransit operators have the option to be coordinated 
under the CTC utilizing the Trapeze scheduling and administrative 



CTC Self Evaluation Questionnaire – 2015 

  5 

Polk TPO 

software. In contrast, several of the non-profit coordination contract 
agencies lack the technical resources to become fully integrated with 
Trapeze at this time. 
  
Coordination efforts between the two public Transit agencies are very 
effective. With the implementation of a single phone number for both 
systems and the opening of a one-call, one-click regional mobility call 
center in May of 2013 which staffs employees representing both agencies, 
customers now have a one stop shop for their mobility needs 

 
23. Of the agencies that the coordinator has coordination or service contracts 

with, which could be better coordinated, when compared to the others?;  
In what ways?   

           
The addition of more non-profit agencies to combine efforts with the Lead 
Agency, ElderPoint Ministries (Blue Bird) Volunteer Driver Program, who 
endeavors to reach out to other nonprofits throughout the County to 
provide transportation through volunteer drivers and gives additional 
access to services for more of the transportation disadvantaged 
populations.  With Elder point’s recent integration into Trapeze, this would 
also give more tracking and reporting capabilities for data.   

 
24. What improvements in coordination could be pursued?  
 
 The CTC is currently coordinating with the ElderPoint Ministries/Blue Bird 
 Volunteer Driver Program and VISTE in utilizing the Trapeze database. 
 This effort needs to be continued and expanded with similar agencies 
 Countywide. With the uncertainty of Medicaid reform and anticipated 
 changes, the sharing of resources and human service agency 
 coordination will be essential.    
 
 
 



 

The information contained in this Monitoring Checklist/Report is for the purpose of internal quality control.  The 

information does not represent the outcome of an audit by such agencies as HUD, DOT, DOEA, etc.  Various state and 

federal agencies use similar terminology but often with differing definitions.  Terms as used in this Checklist/Report are 

defined as follows: 

 

 Finding:  Apparent non-compliance with a regulation, contractual requirement, or policy.  (A Finding will 

reference the applicable authority [Rule, contract section, policy date or section].) 

 Concern: Condition that, if uncorrected, may develop into a Finding. 

 

 Occurrence: Isolated incident, requiring correction, that occurred in spite of adequate quality controls. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Memorandum 
  

  TO:  Marcia Andresen, Director, Social Services Division 
 

FROM: Orrin R. Schaal, Quality Assurance Manager, Social Services  
Division 

    
DATE:  June 7, 2016            

 
  RE:  Monitoring of the Transit System Services Provided by the Lakeland Area 

Mass Transit District                                                                                             
                               

I have performed a monitoring of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District’s (LAMTD) services 
provided to Polk County, a political sub-division of the State on April 7, 2016.  This monitoring 
consisted primarily of a review of the personnel management requirements associated with 
compliance with Florida Administration Code (F.A.C.) Rule Chapter 14-90. 

 
Background: 

 
LAMTD has had a long-standing relationship with Polk County, a political sub-division of the 
state of Florida, as a provider of transit services to the Winter Haven Area Transit (WHAT) 
System.  The Social Services Division Quality Assurance Unit conducted regular reviews of 
LAMTD’s operations to ensure that they were in compliance with the elements of Florida 
Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Rule Chapter 14-90. 
 
Effective October 1, 2015, the County ceased providing transit services of any kind and 
contracted LAMTD to provide these services.  This relationship was documented in an 
“Interlocal Agreement for Transition To A Countywide Transit System” that initially covered the 
period October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016, with the possibility of two one-year 
extensions.  This agreement spelled out all aspects of the operational responsibilities between 

Monitoring Report 



Monitoring of the Transit System Services Provided by the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 

June 7, 2016 
 

 
the two parties. 
 
Since the County is still a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grant recipient for up to three 
years, it will be necessary to monitor LAMTD’s performance during that period.  The 
monitoring that I have performed focused on the personnel management responsibilities 
associated with LAMTD’s compliance with Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Rule Chapter 
14-90.   

 
The results of my monitoring pointed out that LAMTD is properly carrying out the personnel 
management related functions mandated by Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Rule 
Chapter 14-90.  At the time of my review, LAMTD had 103 safety-sensitive employees on 
board, including 22 who had formerly worked for the County. 

 
This monitoring report contains no discrepancies requiring corrective action.   
 
Fiscal/Administrative Review: 

 
There were no fiscal issues relating to this monitoring. 
 
Program Review: 

 
The following items are required by the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Rule Chapter 14-
90: 
 
(1) Documentation (photostatic copy) of valid driver's license for all employees who drive 

vehicles in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-90.004, Florida Administrative Code. 
 

Findings: 
 

Driving records for a sample of 16 of the 102 employees contained copies of current 
licenses.   

 
Recommendations: 

 
None. 
 

(2) Records or documentation of driver training performed for type(s) of equipment 
operated in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-90.004, Florida Administrative Code. 

 
Findings: 

 



Monitoring of the Transit System Services Provided by the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 

June 7, 2016 
 

 
A sample of five drivers who had been with LAMTD before the conversion all had the 
required road testing documentation.  The Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT) granted a waiver for this requirement to the employees with previous driving 
experience in the interests of facilitating the on-boarding process. 

 
Recommendations: 

 
None. 
 

(3) Records of written operational and safety procedures provided to drivers prior to driving 
without supervision in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-90.004, Florida Administrative 
Code. 

 
Findings: 

 
All sampled LAMTD drivers had the required documentation. 

 
Recommendations: 

 
None. 
 

(4) Documentation of compliance with Rule Chapter 14-90.006, Florida Administrative Code by 
records of each driver's work period shall include documentation of: 

 
a. Total days worked 
b. On-duty hours 
c. Driving hours 
d. Time of reporting on and off duty each day 
 
Findings: 

 
Review of payroll records for the periods 3/20/16 through 4/02/16 indicated that drivers 
were complying with the twelve-hour driving limit.   
 

(5) Records of Driver's Pre-employment Examinations in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-
90.0041, Florida Administrative Code. 

 
Findings: 

 
All sampled LAMTD drivers had the required documentation. 

 
Recommendations: 

 
None. 

 
(6) Records of Biennial Medical Examinations in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-90.0041, 

Florida Administrative Code. 



Monitoring of the Transit System Services Provided by the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 

June 7, 2016 
 

 
 

Findings:  
 
All sampled LAMTD drivers had the required documentation. 

 
Recommendations: 
 

 None. 
 

(7) Compliance with “Drug Free Work Place Act” in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-90.004, 
Florida Administrative Code.   
 
Findings: 

 
LAMTD has developed a substance abuse policy and requires employees to 
acknowledge receipt of it when they are hired.  The organization administers a proper 
program for preventing drug and alcohol abuse.  Its employees in safety-sensitive 
positions are in a pool of employees subject to random testing. 
 
LAMTD has tested a satisfactory number of employees during the current calendar 
year.  All sampled safety-sensitive employees were enrolled in the random testing pool. 

 
Conclusion: 

 
I congratulate LAMTD’s staff for their dedication to ensuring that LAMTD manages its 
operational personnel according to applicable regulations.  I also appreciate the assistance 
that was provided by the LAMTD staff during the monitoring. 

 
cc: Jeanna Cox, Senior Planner, Social Services Division 

Judy Tewksbury, Fiscal Manager, Social Services Division 
Quality Assurance Unit File 

 



 
 

Agency:   Citrus Connection  

Name of Responder:  Aaron Dunn 

Email Address:  adunn@ridecitrus.com 

Phone Number:  863-999-3431 

  

This correspondence is in response to the Florida Department of Transportation’s 

(FDOT) request for information from state Community Transportations Coordinators (CTC). 

The following is a compiled set of answers to the questions contained in FDOT’s letter on 13 

April 2016.       

Scheduling trips in advance. What is your agency’s policy for scheduling trips in advance? 

What methods does your agency use to evaluate the impact of the advanced scheduling policy 

both, on riders and your agency? 

Our Regional Mobility Call Center (RMCC) schedules 3-7 days in advance. On a cases-

by-case basis, trips can be scheduled with less than 3 day notice, provided substantive, verifiable 

circumstances exist. Additionally, clients eligible for subscription service (dialysis patience for 

example) can schedule service on a cyclical, reoccurring basis outside of the 3-to-7 day policy.  

   Minimizing scheduling further than 7 days in advance ensures sufficient availability for 

the organization’s clientele. Simultaneously, by scheduling trips with at least 3 days advance 

notice, the agency is more capable of providing fast, frequent, and efficient service. The 



 
methodology used to determine these parameters for advanced scheduling is rider feedback via 

our automated consumer report database, analysis of service demand, evaluation of service 

delivery after it has been provided, and optimization software via the Trapeze transportation 

suite.       

On-Time Performance. What are your agency’s policy’s on-time performance measures for 

passenger pick-up and drop-off? What are the targets for each measure? What are your agency’s 

pick-up and drop-off windows? What methods does your agency use to evaluate these 

performance measures? 

 Both for pick-up and drop-off, the organization’s policy is to maintain a 90% on time 

performance measure. A 30 minute window is utilized; 15 minutes prior to the scheduled time 

and 15 minutes after the scheduled time. These measures are tracked by utilizing Mobile Data 

Terminals (MDT) to perform trips in each transit vehicle that is time synchronization and 

compared against scheduling, performance, and monitoring capabilities via the Trapeze 

transportation software suite.      

Passenger wait times. What actions does your agency take to minimize passenger wait times, 

both for pick-ups and on-board travel? What methods does your agency use in evaluating actions 

taken to minimize passenger wait times?  

In order to minimize passenger wait times for pick up and on-board wait times, the 

organization employs several measures. The RMCC staff schedules trips by contacting 

appointment providers (medical facilities for example) directly. Agencies are also contacted to 

verify appointment times and negotiate in order to better serve clientele. Trip times are also 



 
negotiated with clients to increase on-time performance for all riders, while meeting individual 

needs.  

Multi-loading trips is also practiced in order to reduce wait times. The Trapeze 

optimization function is utilized in order to reduce unnecessary ride times. Ride times are 

comparatively longer in our service area due to the size of Polk county and rural population 

inherently. Therefore, after trip optimization is conducted during the scheduling process, each 

trip is verified and screened for ways to reduce client ride time further. The organization 

evaluates these measures regularly through customer feedback and driver feedback. Additionally, 

we receive feedback from agencies (such as medical providers) regarding pick-up wait times.     

Customer satisfaction. What passenger satisfaction survey ratings does your agency collect? 

Where does your agency publicly post passenger satisfaction survey results? What methods does 

your agency use to evaluate passenger satisfaction survey results?  

To determine whether or not the transportation disadvantaged services in this area of 

operation are meeting client needs, a formalized assessment is undertaken each year to measure 

the level of rider satisfaction. Citrus Connection developed a client satisfaction survey and 

administers the survey to existing Door-to-Door and bus pass clients on an annual basis. To 

encourage participation, the cover letter and survey questions are distributed in pre-addressed, 

postage-paid return envelopes.  

Additionally, Citrus Connection maintains an on-line client satisfaction survey available 

to clients year-round at the following we address: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HPM8888. 

Results are reviewed cyclically and findings are evaluated to determine operational needs and 



 
training imperatives. Subsequently, outcomes are incorporated into regular staff meetings and 

training functions.   

The methodology utilized to analyze survey results are multi-faceted. Firstly, specific 

instances mentioned in survey feedback sections are verified via on board camera recordings, 

telephonic recoding database in the Regional Mobility Call Center, and driver interview; these 

instances are handled on a case-by-case basis in congruence with organizational policy and 

applicable TDSP governing direction. Secondly, results are categorized in order to reveal trends. 

For example, results related to maintenance like: vehicle operation, good working order of 

equipment, or equipment dependability are grouped together in order to address issues or offer 

congratulatory feedback to appropriate staff. 

 All results are compiled into categorical percentages as well. For instance, if 350 

respondents out of 400 answer “Vehicles are clean” with response of “Strongly agree” or 

“Agree”, than we determine that 87.5% of customers are “satisfied” with vehicle cleanliness. The 

categorized results are posted on the organization’s website for public notification. The results 

are also reported to the agency’s board of directors, which is open to the public and publically 

broadcasted.   

Has your agency adopted and implemented each of the performance measures or policies 

described in questions 1-4?    

 The agency has adopted and implemented each of the performance measures discussed in 

questions 1-4. The applicable measures, practices, and policies involved are being evaluated and 

reformed continuously; we are always seeking ways to improve.  



 
 

Respectfully, 

Aaron G. Dunn (Para Transit Manager)  

Tel: 863-999-3431 

Email: adunn@ridecitrus.com  

 



Su
rv

ey
 R

es
po

ns
e 

Ra
te

D
riv

er
 C

om
pe

te
nc

e
D

riv
er

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
Cu

st
om

er
 S

er
vi

ce
Ca

ll 
Ce

nt
er

 
V

eh
ic

le
/E

qu
ip

m
en

t O
pe

rta
io

n
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

vi
ce
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
t o

ve
r l
as
t y

ea
r

Sa
tis

fie
d

30
4

30
2

25
7

68
1

62
6

73
9

13
5

D
iss

at
isf

ie
d

1
6

18
54

16
38

12

To
ta

l R
es

po
ns

es
16

1
30

5
30

8
27

5
73

5
64

2
77

7
14

7

Ra
tin

g
32

.6
6%

99
.6

7%
98

.0
5%

93
.4

5%
92

.6
5%

97
.5

1%
95

.1
1%

91
.8

4%

45
/4

93
to

ta
l

Q
ue

sti
on

s: 
6,

8
Q

ue
sti

on
s: 

5,
7

Q
ue

sti
on

s: 
18

, 1
9

Q
ue

sti
on

s: 
9,

 1
0,

 1
1,

 1
2,

 1
3

Q
ue

sti
on

s:1
, 2

, 3
, 4

Q
ue

sti
on

s: 
14

, 1
5,

 1
6,

 1
7,

 2
1

Q
ue

sti
on

s: 
20

Sa
tis

fie
d

D
iss

at
isf

ie
d

Di
ss
at
isf
ie
d 
Ra

te
1

15
8

3
1.
90
%

2
16

0
0.
00
%

3
15

5
5

3.
23
%

4
15

3
8

5.
23
%

5
15

7
4

2.
55
%

6
15

9
1

0.
63
%

7
14

5
2

1.
38
%

8
14

5
0.
00
%

9
13

3
16

12
.0
3%

10
14

5
5

3.
45
%

11
14

3
6

4.
20
%

12
13

5
11

8.
15
%

13
12

5
16

12
.8
0%

14
14

0
15

10
.7
1%

15
14

1
14

9.
93
%

16
15

6
0.
00
%

17
14

5
7

4.
83
%

18
13

3
9

6.
77
%

19
12

4
9

7.
26
%

20
13

5
12

8.
89
%

21
15

7
2

1.
27
%

0.
00

%
10

.0
0%

20
.0
0%

30
.0
0%

40
.0
0%

50
.0
0%

60
.0
0%

70
.0
0%

80
.0
0%

90
.0
0%

10
0.
00

%

SU
RV

EY
 R
ES
PO

N
SE
 R
AT

E

DR
IV
ER

 C
O
M
PE
TE
N
CE

DR
IV
ER

 C
U
ST
O
M
ER

 S
ER

VI
CE

CU
ST
O
M
ER

 S
ER

VI
CE

CA
LL
 C
EN

TE
R 

VE
HI
CL
E/
EQ

U
IP
M
EN

T 
O
PE
RT

AI
O
N

TR
AN

SP
O
RT

AT
IO
N
 S
ER

VI
CE

 

SE
RV

IC
E 
IM

PR
O
VE

M
EN

T 
O
VE

R 
LA
ST
 Y
EA

R

32
.6
6%

99
.6
7%

98
.0
5%

93
.4
5%

92
.6
5%97

.5
1%

95
.1
1%

91
.8
4%

Ci
tr
us
 C
on

ne
ct
io
n 
CT
C

TD
 C
us
to
m
er
 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
nS
ur
ve
y 
Re

su
lts

 F
Y 
20
15
/1
6

























































Ci
tr

us
 C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
CT

C 
M

ee
ti

ng



•
D

ec
re

as
e

in
th

e
pe

rc
en

to
fT

D
po

pu
la

tio
n

tr
an

sp
or

te
d.

5.
83

%
of

al
lt

ho
se

in
Po

lk
C

ou
nt

y
de

te
rm

in
ed

to
qu

al
ify

fo
ra

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

se
rv

ic
e

w
er

e
se

rv
ed

by
th

e
pr

og
ra

m
in

20
16

–
do

w
n

fro
m

6.
5%

in
20

15
w

hi
ch

is
be

lo
w

th
e

go
al

of
se

rv
in

g
at

le
as

t9
%

.
Th

is
de

cl
in

e
is

at
tri

bu
te

d
to

th
e

lo
ss

of
M

ed
ic

ai
d

tri
ps

,a
nd

th
e

tra
ns

iti
on

of
th

e
C

TC
op

er
at

io
ns

fro
m

th
e

Po
lk

C
ou

nt
y

Bo
ar

d
of

C
ou

nt
y

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
s

to
LA

M
TD

.
o

D
ec

re
as

e
in

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
se

rv
ed

.T
ot

al
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

se
rv

ed
in

20
16

(1
3,

40
9)

de
cr

ea
se

d
fro

m
20

15
(1

5,
82

7)
.

Th
is

de
cr

ea
se

is
at

tri
bu

te
d

to
th

e
ch

an
ge

s
in

th
e

M
ed

ic
ai

d
pr

og
ra

m
al

on
g

w
ith

ch
an

ge
s

in
ag

en
cy

co
or

di
na

tio
n

ag
re

em
en

ts
du

rin
g

th
e

ye
ar

.
o

N
um

be
ro

ft
ot

al
tr

ip
s

in
cr

ea
se

d.
To

ta
lr

ep
or

te
d

tri
ps

w
er

e
up

fro
m

39
2,

50
9

to
47

7,
31

3,
or

21
%

.
o

Th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
re

po
rte

d
fix

ed
ro

ut
e

tr
ip

s
in

cr
ea

se
d.

Fi
xe

d
ro

ut
e

tri
ps

w
er

e
up

fro
m

20
0,

73
8

to
29

4,
26

8,
re

pr
es

en
tin

g
a

44
%

in
cr

ea
se

.
o

Th
e

nu
m

be
r

of
pa

ra
tr

an
si

t
tr

ip
s

de
cr

ea
se

d
sl

ig
ht

ly
.

Th
es

e
tri

ps
w

er
e

do
w

n
by

2%
fro

m
19

1,
77

1
to

18
3,

04
5.

Th
e

Sc
ho

ol
Bo

ar
d

di
d

no
tr

ep
or

ta
ny

tri
ps

fo
r2

01
6.

•
Ex

pe
ns

e
pe

r
pa

ss
en

ge
r

tr
ip

de
cr

ea
se

d.
Ex

pe
ns

e
pe

rp
as

se
ng

er
tri

p
de

cr
ea

se
d

fro
m

$1
8.

51
to

$1
7.

25
,w

hi
ch

is
a

7%
de

cr
ea

se
.

o
Ex

pe
ns

e
pe

rp
ar

at
ra

ns
it

tr
ip

in
cr

ea
se

d.
Th

e
ex

pe
ns

e
pe

rp
ar

at
ra

ns
it

tri
p

in
cr

ea
se

d
fro

m
$3

7.
87

to
$4

4.
99

.
o

Ex
pe

ns
e

pe
rv

eh
ic

le
m

ile
in

cr
ea

se
d.

Th
e

ex
pe

ns
e

pe
rv

eh
ic

le
m

ile
in

cr
ea

se
d

fro
m

$3
.5

0
to

$5
.5

2.
o

Ex
pe

ns
e

pe
rd

riv
er

ho
ur

in
cr

ea
se

d.
Th

e
ex

pe
ns

e
pe

rd
riv

er
ho

ur
in

cr
ea

se
d

sl
ig

ht
ly

fro
m

$3
4.

84
to

$3
7.

93
.

•
Ve

hi
cl

e
m

ile
s

be
tw

ee
n

ro
ad

ca
lls

di
d

no
tm

ee
tt

he
se

tg
oa

lo
f3

0,
00

0
m

ile
s.

Th
e

C
TC

re
po

rte
d

15
,6

50
ve

hi
cl

e
m

ile
s

be
tw

ee
n

ro
ad

ca
lls

in
20

16
,u

p
fro

m
th

e
11

,0
28

m
ile

s
re

po
rte

d
in

20
15

.
Th

is
co

nt
in

ue
s

to
be

a
co

nc
er

n
of

th
e

C
TC

Ev
al

ua
tio

n
C

om
m

itt
ee

an
d

w
ill

be
m

on
ito

re
d

cl
os

el
y

as
th

e
tra

ns
iti

on
of

ve
hi

cl
e

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

is
sh

ift
ed

fro
m

th
e

C
ou

nt
y

to
C

itr
us

C
on

ne
ct

io
n

in
La

ke
la

nd
.

•
Ac

ci
de

nt
s

in
20

16
in

cr
ea

se
d

sl
ig

ht
ly

.
16

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
ac

ci
de

nt
s

w
er

e
re

po
rte

d
fo

r
20

16
,

w
hi

ch
ac

co
un

tf
or

an
av

er
ag

e
of

1.
07

ac
ci

de
nt

s
pe

r1
00

,0
00

m
ile

s.
Th

is
is

an
in

cr
ea

se
fro

m
20

15
.

•
N

um
be

r
of

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s

re
m

ai
ns

lo
w

.T
he

C
TC

re
ce

iv
ed

.0
00

5
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s
pe

r
1,

00
0

pa
ra

tra
ns

it
tri

ps
in

20
16

–
st

ay
in

g
w

el
lb

el
ow

th
e

go
al

of
le

ss
th

an
2

pe
r

1,
00

0
pa

ra
tra

ns
it

tri
ps

.
A

to
ta

lo
f2

6
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s
w

er
e

re
po

rte
d

fo
r

20
15

.E
ac

h
co

m
pl

ai
nt

is
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
an

d
pr

oc
es

se
d

in
te

rn
al

ly
to

de
te

rm
in

e
th

e
so

ur
ce

of
th

e
pr

ob
le

m
fo

ra
pr

om
pt

re
so

lu
tio

n
w

hi
ch

re
su

lte
d

in
no

gr
ie

va
nc

es
be

in
g

fil
ed

in
th

e
pa

st
ye

ar
.

Cu
rr

en
t 

CT
C 

Ev
al

ua
ti

on
 M

aj
or

 A
re

as
 o

f 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce



Co
m

m
is

si
on

 f
or

 t
he

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

d 
(C

TD
) 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l C
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
Bo

ar
d 

(L
CB

) 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

st
af

fi
ng

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
lo

ng
 w

it
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
tr

ip
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 t
o 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

nc
er

ns
:


Th

e 
CT

C 
Ev

al
ua

ti
on

 C
om

m
it

te
e 

vo
ic

ed
 d

ee
p 

co
nc

er
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
$1

39
,5

25
.3

1 
th

at
 

w
as

 le
ft

 o
n 

th
e 

ta
bl

e 
at

 y
ea

r 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 g
ra

nt
. 

 U
nm

et
 t

ri
p 

re
qu

es
ts

 t
ot

al
ed

 1
,2

08
 w

it
h 

1,
17

4 
be

in
g 

du
e 

to
 la

ck
 o

f 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 is

su
es

. 
 T

hi
s 

ar
ea

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 c
lo

se
ly

 m
on

it
or

ed
 in

 
th

e 
up

co
m

in
g 

ye
ar

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

TD
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
is

 s
er

ve
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
Po

lk
 C

ou
nt

y.
 


D

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s,

 T
PO

 s
ta

ff 
ob

se
rv

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
C

TC
 is

 in
 d

ire
 n

ee
d 

of
 a

 T
D

 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
; a

 p
er

so
n 

w
ho

 c
an

 g
o 

ou
t i

nt
o 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 to

 c
oo

rd
in

at
e 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
, t

he
 h

os
pi

ta
ls

, t
he

 d
ia

ly
si

s 
ce

nt
er

s,
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
TD

 p
ro

gr
am

 
ov

er
al

l. 
 T

hi
s 

is
 c

rit
ic

al
 to

 th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 th

e 
TD

 p
ro

gr
am

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
un

m
et

 
ne

ed
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

.

(a
lt

ho
ug

h 
ov

er
co

m
in

g 
th

e 
$1

39
,5

25
.3

1 
w

it
h 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ur
ch

as
e 

ga
p 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

im
m

ed
ia

te
, 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
co

or
di

na
ti

on
 w

ill
 c

on
ti

nu
e 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 c

oo
rd

in
at

ed
 s

ys
te

m
’s

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
re

fl
ec

te
d 

on
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
sl

id
e)



Po
lk

Sc
he

du
le

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

TO
TA

L

M
on

th
ly

 C
TD

 sh
ar

e
74

84
7

74
65

1
74

65
1

74
65

1
74

65
1

74
65

1
75

91
4

75
91

4
75

91
4

75
91

4
75

91
4

75
91

4
90

3,
58

6.
00

 

Cu
m

m
ul

at
iv

e 
CT

D 
Sh

ar
e7

4,
84

7.
00

 
14

9,
49

8.
00

 
22

4,
14

9.
00

 
29

8,
80

0.
00

 
37

3,
45

1.
00

 
44

8,
10

2.
00

 
52

4,
01

6.
00

 
59

9,
93

0.
00

 
67

5,
84

4.
00

 
75

1,
75

8.
00

 
82

7,
67

2.
00

 
90

3,
58

6.
00

 
90

3,
58

6.
00

 

O
ve

rb
ill

/U
nd

er
bi

ll1
7,

28
8.

92
 

23
,5

67
.5

8 
38

,4
92

.2
4 

62
,9

88
.9

5 
87

,3
05

.3
6 

11
0,

47
4.

17
 

18
6,

38
8.

17
 

26
2,

30
2.

17
 

33
8,

21
6.

17
 

41
4,

13
0.

17
 

49
0,

04
4.

17
 

56
5,

95
8.

17
 

56
5,

95
8.

17
 

To
ta

l m
on

th
ly

 In
v.

57
,5

58
.0

8 
68

,3
72

.3
4 

59
,7

26
.3

4 
50

,1
54

.2
9 

50
,3

34
.5

9 
51

,4
82

.1
9 

-
-

-
-

-
-

Ba
la

nc
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
84

6,
02

7.
92

 
77

7,
65

5.
58

 
71

7,
92

9.
24

 
66

7,
77

4.
95

 
61

7,
44

0.
36

 
56

5,
95

8.
17

 
56

5,
95

8.
17

 
56

5,
95

8.
17

 
56

5,
95

8.
17

 
56

5,
95

8.
17

 
56

5,
95

8.
17

 
56

5,
95

8.
17

 

Bl
cn

 in
 F

la
ir

9/
22

/2
01

6
10

/2
7/

20
16

11
/1

4/
20

16
1/

18
/2

01
7

1/
27

/2
01

7

CA
PI

TA
L 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

O
F 

$3
36

96
8.

00
 

TO
 B

E 
AD

DE
D 

LA
TE

R

1s
t i

nv
 #

G
0C

02
-1

G
0C

02
-2

G
0C

D0
2-

3 
G

0C
02

-4
 

G
0C

02
-5

 
G

C0
2-

6 

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

63
,9

53
.4

2 
75

,9
69

.2
7 

66
,3

62
.6

0 
55

,7
26

.9
9 

55
,9

27
.3

2 
57

,2
02

.4
3 

37
5,

14
2.

03
 

Le
ss

:1
0%

 L
oc

al
 M

at
ch

(6
,3

95
.3

4)
(7

,5
96

.9
3)

(6
,6

36
.2

6)
(5

,5
72

.7
0)

(5
,5

92
.7

3)
(5

,7
20

.2
4)

-
-

-
-

-
-(

37
,5

14
.2

0)

Le
ss

: O
th

er
-

Le
ss

: A
m

ou
nt

 o
ve

r E
xh

ib
it B

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

Su
bt

ot
al

57
,5

58
.0

8 
68

,3
72

.3
4 

59
,7

26
.3

4 
50

,1
54

.2
9 

50
,3

34
.5

9 
51

,4
82

.1
9 

-
-

-
-

-
-3

37
,6

27
.8

3 

Ad
d:

 
Ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n/
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n
-

-

To
ta

l 1
st

 In
v 

am
ou

nt
57

,5
58

.0
8 

68
,3

72
.3

4 
59

,7
26

.3
4 

50
,1

54
.2

9 
50

,3
34

.5
9 

51
,4

82
.1

9 
-

-
-

-
-

-3
37

,6
27

.8
3 

FY
 2

01
6-

17
 T

ri
p 

&
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
G

ra
nt

 #
G

0C
02



2 
M

ai
n 

Co
nt

ri
bu

ti
ng

 F
ac

to
rs


Lo

ss
 o

f 
M

ed
ic

ai
d 

tr
ip

s

i.
29

.2
9%

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 b
ill

ab
le

 t
ri

ps
 f

ro
m

 F
Y2

01
3/

14
 –

th
ru

-
FY

20
15

/1
6

ii.
la

ck
 o

f 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

re
pl

ac
e/

au
gm

en
t 

lo
st

 M
ed

ic
ai

d 
tr

ip
s 


M

er
ge

r 
be

tw
ee

n 
Po

lk
 C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
si

t 
an

d 
Ci

tr
us

 C
on

ne
ct

io
n

i.
in

co
ng

ru
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

or
ga

ni
za

ti
on

s 
(s

ta
ff

in
g/

or
ga

ni
za

ti
on

/c
os

ts
)

ii.
la

ck
 o

f 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

on
 t

he
 b

eh
al

f 
of

 b
ot

h 
Po

lk
 

Tr
an

si
t 

an
d 

Ci
tr

us
 C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s,
 o

r 
id

en
ti

fy
, 

ar
ea

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 
su

ch
 a

s:
 f

in
an

ci
al

 e
xp

en
se

s 
an

d 
bu

dg
et

s,
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
ls

, 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
, c

on
tr

ac
ts

, 
di

ff
er

en
ce

s 
in

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 a
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

la
nn

in
g 

  

iii
.

th
e 

ag
en

cy
 w

as
n’

t 
bu

ilt
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 w
it

ho
ut

 c
oh

es
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ag

en
ci

es
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
m

er
ge

r 
pr

oc
es

s,
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 
m

ee
t 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 w

en
t 

un
-a

dd
re

ss
ed



Lo
ss

 o
f 

M
ed

ic
ai

d

0

50
00

10
00

0

15
00

0

20
00

0

25
00

0

30
00

0

13
-1

4 
To

ta
l

14
-1

5 
To

ta
l (

w
it

h 
a 

40
%

ra
te

 in
cr

ea
se

)
15

-1
6 

To
ta

l (
w

it
h 

a 
30

%
ra

te
 in

cr
ea

se
)

29
.2

9 
% 

De
cl

in
e 

fr
om

 1
3/

14
 -

to
-

15
/1

6

16
/1

7 
YT

D 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

tr
ip

s 
ar

e 
9,

93
3

15
/1

6 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

tr
ip

s 
at

 s
am

e 
ti

m
e 

w
as

 9
,1

86
 



*O
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l D

if
fe

re
nc

es
*

Po
lk

 T
ra

ns
it

 P
os

it
io

n 
Co

nt
ro

l



Po
lk

 T
ra

ns
it

Se
rv

ic
e 

De
liv

er
y 

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l C

ha
rt

 (S
up

po
rt

ed
 2

9 
TD

 r
un

s)

Di
re

ct
or

Pa
ra

 T
ra

ns
it

M
an

ag
er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Pa
ra

 T
ra

ns
it

 
M

an
ag

er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
Co

or
di

na
to

r



Ci
tr

us
 C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e 
De

liv
er

y 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l C
ha

rt
 a

t 
M

er
ge

r
Di

re
ct

or

Pa
ra

 T
ra

ns
it

M
an

ag
er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Dr
iv

er

Dr
iv

er



Ci
tr

us
 C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
Cu

rr
en

t 
Se

rv
ic

e 
De

liv
er

y 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
na

l C
ha

rt
Di

re
ct

or

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Dr
iv

er

Dr
iv

er



Ci
tr

us
 C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
Sh

or
t-

te
rm

 G
oa

l O
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l C

ha
rt

Di
re

ct
or

Pa
ra

 T
ra

ns
it

M
an

ag
er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Su
pe

rv
is

or

Dr
iv

er
Dr

iv
er

Dr
iv

er

Dr
iv

er

Dr
iv

er

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
Co

or
di

na
to

r



La
ck

 o
f 

ev
al

ua
ti

on
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
ra

ti
on

s 
of

 d
if

fe
re

nc
es

 in
 c

os
ts

 c
au

se
d 

m
aj

or
 la

ps
es

 
fo

r 
im

pl
em

en
ti

ng
 a

 v
ia

bl
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
bu

dg
et

 f
or

 t
he

 T
D 

pr
og

ra
m

Th
es

e 
la

ps
es

 in
cl

ud
ed

:


Ab

se
nc

e 
of

 it
em

iz
ed

 e
xp

en
se

s 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
ed

 d
ir

ec
t 

an
d 

in
di

re
ct

 e
xp

en
se

s


Am

ou
nt

 o
f 

su
bs

id
iz

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

th
at

 w
en

t 
un

-e
va

lu
at

ed


Di

ff
er

en
ce

s 
in

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
os

ts
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

w
it

h 
ag

ed
 f

le
et

 o
f 

ve
hi

cl
es

Th
es

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
gr

ea
tl

y 
af

fe
ct

ed
 t

he
 r

at
e 

m
od

el
 p

ro
ce

ss
, 

w
hi

ch
 f

ur
th

er
 im

pe
de

d 
th

e 
cr

ea
ti

on
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 o
f 

a 
vi

ab
le

 o
pe

ra
ti

ng
 b

ud
ge

t 
   



Co
un

ty
 T

D 
Re

ve
nu

es



Co
un

ty
 T

D 
Ex

pe
ns

es



Co
un

ty
 T

D 
Bu

dg
et



O
ve

r 
th

e 
fi

rs
t 

2 
qu

ar
te

rs
 in

 F
Y 

16
/1

7 
ex

pe
ns

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

ca
pt

ur
ed

, 
ye

t 
in

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
ly

 s
up

po
rt

 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

TR
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

 D
IS

A
D

V
A

N
TA

G
ED

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
FI

N
A

N
C

IA
L 

ST
A

TE
M

EN
T

M
O

N
TH

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 2

01
6 

-5
0%

O
F 

FI
SC

A
L 

Y
EA

R

R
ev

en
ue

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
%

Y
TD

 B
ud

ge
t

D
ec

em
be

r 
A

ct
ua

l
Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
G

O
C

02
 G

ra
nt

 
$1

,3
78

,3
93

$6
89

,1
97

90
%

 D
isa

dv
an

ta
ge

d 
St

at
e 

Fu
nd

s
$1

,2
40

,3
65

89
.9

9%
$6

20
,1

83
$ 

   
   

 5
1,

48
2 

$ 
33

7,
62

5 
10

%
 m

at
ch

in
g 

-l
oc

al
 c

as
h 

fu
nd

s
$1

37
,8

18
10

.0
0%

$6
8,

90
9

$ 
   

   
   

5,
72

0 
$ 

  3
7,

51
4 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 D

ol
la

r C
on

tri
bu

tio
n

$1
89

0.
01

%
$9

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

M
on

et
ar

y 
va

lu
e 

of
 in

-k
in

d 
m

at
ch

$2
1

0.
00

2%
$1

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

Su
bt

ot
al

$1
,3

78
,3

93
10

0.
00

%
$6

89
,1

97
$ 

   
   

 5
7,

20
2 

$ 
37

5,
13

8 
Le

ss
: C

ap
ita

l
$3

44
,5

46
33

.3
27

%
$1

72
,2

73
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 -

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

To
ta

l
$1

,0
33

,8
47

$5
16

,9
24

$ 
   

   
 5

7,
20

2 
$ 

37
5,

13
8 

Ex
pe

ns
es

A
nn

ua
l B

ud
ge

t
%

Y
TD

 B
ud

ge
t

D
ec

em
be

r 
A

ct
ua

l
Y

TD
 A

ct
ua

l
La

bo
r

O
pe

ra
to

rs
 (

in
cl

ud
es

 b
en

ef
its

, O
T-

no
t h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e)
$7

24
,0

52
52

.5
3%

$3
62

,0
26

$2
0,

17
0

$1
43

,9
74

D
ire

ct
 a

dm
in

ist
ra

tio
n 

(in
cl

ud
es

 b
en

ef
its

-
no

t h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e)

$1
34

,0
00

9.
72

%
$6

7,
00

0
$8

,5
43

$5
1,

86
5

In
di

re
ct

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
(in

cl
ud

es
 b

en
ef

its
 -

no
t h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e)
$0

0.
00

%
$0

$1
5,

51
7

$7
5,

06
7

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e

$1
36

,8
01

9.
92

%
$6

8,
40

0
$2

0,
94

5
$9

3,
62

2
C

on
tra

ct
/M

is
c

$0
0.

00
%

$0
$0

$0
Su

bt
ot

al
$9

94
,8

53
96

.2
3%

$4
97

,4
26

$6
5,

17
4

$3
64

,5
27

O
pe

ra
tin

g
$3

83
,5

40
27

.8
3%

$1
91

,7
70

$6
,1

35
$7

9,
03

3
Su

bt
ot

al
$1

,3
78

,3
93

10
0.

00
%

$6
89

,1
96

$7
1,

30
9

$4
43

,5
60

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
$3

44
,5

46
33

.3
3%

$1
72

,2
73

$0
$0

To
ta

l
$1

,0
33

,8
47

$5
16

,9
23

$7
1,

30
9

$4
43

,5
60

($
14

,1
07

)



$6
3,

95
3

$5
7,

55
8

$2
6,

77
0

$8
,7

73

$9
,4

55
$1

4,
01

8

$1
7,

84
0

$7
5,

96
9

$6
8,

37
2

$2
5,

25
6

$8
,7

73

$9
,9

28
$1

4,
97

6

$1
7,

08
6

$6
6,

36
3

$5
9,

72
6

$2
7,

10
8

$8
,8

00

$9
,9

80
$1

4,
97

6

$1
7,

07
0

$5
5,

72
7

$5
0,

15
4

$3
1,

90
5

$8
,8

00

$7
,4

40

$0
$9

8

$5
5,

94
7.

32

$5
0,

35
2.

59

$1
9,

05
4.

06

$8
,4

72
.9

4

$1
5,

44
0.

12
$1

4,
53

5.
38

$1
31

.8
0

$5
7,

20
2.

42

$5
1,

48
2.

18

$2
0,

16
9.

55

$8
,5

43
.0

7

$1
5,

51
6.

99
$2

0,
94

4.
61

$6
,1

34
.7

5

$0

$1
0,

00
0

$2
0,

00
0

$3
0,

00
0

$4
0,

00
0

$5
0,

00
0

$6
0,

00
0

$7
0,

00
0

$8
0,

00
0

Re
ve

nu
es

In
vo

ice
d

O
pe

ra
to

r S
al

ar
ie

s
Di

re
ct

 S
al

ar
ie

s
In

di
re

ct
 S

al
ar

ie
s

He
al

th
 C

ar
e

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es

20
16

/1
7 

YT
D

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pt
em

be
r

O
ct

ob
er

No
ve

m
be

r
De

ce
m

be
r



Ra
te

 M
od

el
 V

ar
ia

nc
es



Ex
pe

ns
es

E
E

L
a

s
t 

n
a

m
e

 
F

ir
s
t 

N
a

m
e

P
e

rc
P

R
e

n
ta

g
e

 C
a

lc
F
in

a
n

c
e

/
A

d
m

in
W

.H
.A

.T
.

R
u

ra
l 

2
5

R
u

ra
l 

3
5

m
a

rt
 S

h
u

tt
l

T
D

A
D

A
e

ra
ti

o
n

 F
u

n
d

D
O

O
0

1
0

D
o
o

E
li

z
a
b
e
th

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
6
.9

2
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
1
6
.6

1
4
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
6
.6

1
4
0

$
  

  
 

3
.6

9
2
0

$
  

  
 

1
8
.4

6
0
0

$
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
A

I2
6

2
G

a
in

e
r

A
m

a
n

a
d
a

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

S
U

D
0

1
0

S
u

d
d
u

th
C

a
r
m

e
n

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
6
.9

2
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
1
6
.6

1
4
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
6
.6

1
4
0

$
  

  
 

3
.6

9
2
0

$
  

  
 

1
8
.4

6
0
0

$
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

W
E

T
0

1
0

W
e
tz

e
l

R
o
d
n

e
y

1
0
0
%

8
6
.5

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
6
.5

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
4
.6

3
2
0

$
  

  
  

 
1
5
.5

8
4
4

$
  

  
  

  
1
5
.5

8
4
4

$
  

  
 

3
.4

6
3
2

$
  

  
 

1
7
.3

1
6
0

$
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

Z
A

Z
0

1
0

Z
a
z
z
a
r
o

M
a
r
g

a
r
it

a
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
3
6
.9

2
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
1
6
.6

1
4
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
6
.6

1
4
0

$
  

  
 

3
.6

9
2
0

$
  

  
 

1
8
.4

6
0
0

$
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

W
A

L
0

2
0

W
a
lt

e
r
s

D
a
vi

d
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
8
2
.1

4
7
0

$
  

  
  

 
1
.3

8
4
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
.3

8
4
5

$
  

  
  

 
1
.8

4
6
0

$
  

  
 

2
.7

6
9
0

$
  

  
  

2
.7

6
9
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

B
E

R
0

1
0

B
e
r
r
ia

n
D

a
r
ie

ll
e

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

C
A

R
0

2
0

C
a
r
lt

o
n

-S
te

ve
n

sS
h

e
r
i

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

C
A

R
1

1
1

C
a
r
te

r
M

a
r
q
u

it
ta

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
7
.8

4
3
0

$
  

  
4
3
.3

8
1
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
1
.0

7
6
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

E
D

W
0

1
0

E
d
w

a
r
d
s

C
ie

a
r
a

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
7
.8

4
3
0

$
  

  
4
3
.3

8
1
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
1
.0

7
6
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

J
O

E
0

1
0

J
o
e

M
a
r
le

n
e

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
7
.8

4
3
0

$
  

  
4
3
.3

8
1
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
1
.0

7
6
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

S
U

A
2

2
2

S
u

a
r
e
z

C
a
tr

in
a

1
0
0
%

8
7
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
7
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
5
.6

7
0
0

$
  

  
4
0
.8

9
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
.4

4
0
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

T
O

R
0

5
0

T
o
r
r
e
s

H
e
c
to

r
1
0
0
%

8
8
.9

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
8
.9

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
6
.4

5
7
2

$
  

  
4
1
.7

9
2
4

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
.6

7
0
4

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

W
A

L
0

1
0

M
a
g

r
u

th
e
r

D
e
n

is
e

1
0
0
%

9
0
.8

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
0
.8

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
7
.2

5
2
6

$
  

  
4
2
.7

0
4
2

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
.9

0
3
2

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

W
O

O
0

6
0

W
o
o
te

n
P

a
u

l
1
0
0
%

9
1
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
1
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
7
.3

2
6
4

$
  

  
4
2
.7

8
8
8

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
.9

2
4
8

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

A
U

G
0

1
0

A
u

g
u

s
te

V
in

c
e
n

t
1
0
0
%

8
9
.7

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
9
.7

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
1
.2

8
9
6

$
  

  
3
5
.0

0
6
4

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.4

6
4
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

B
L

A
0

1
0

B
la

c
k

w
e
ld

e
r

D
a
r
r
y
l

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

C
H

R
0

1
0

C
h

r
is

ti
a
n

D
e
b
r
a

1
0
0
%

7
2
.0

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
2
.0

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
3
.1

5
6
8

$
  

  
2
8
.1

1
1
2

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
.8

1
2
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

C
O

M
0

2
0

C
o
m

e
r

A
lv

il
d
a

1
0
0
%

8
9
.4

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
9
.4

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
1
.1

5
1
6

$
  

  
3
4
.8

8
9
4

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.4

1
9
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

D
U

N
0

3
0

D
u

n
n

L
a
r
r
y

1
0
0
%

9
2
.2

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.2

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

4
8
8

$
  

  
3
5
.9

8
9
2

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
2
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

D
U

N
0

4
0

D
u

n
n

A
a
r
o
n

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
7
.6

9
0
0

$
  

  
4
6
.1

5
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
8
.4

6
0
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
R

A
0

8
0

G
r
a
ve

s
P

a
tr

ic
ia

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
U

E
0

1
0

G
u

e
r
r
e
r
o

A
lb

e
r
to

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

H
A

L
0

4
0

H
a
ll

K
e
n

n
e
th

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

H
A

R
1

6
0

H
a
r
r
is

o
n

J
a
n

e
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

H
O

P
0

1
0

H
o
p
k

in
s

D
e
b
r
a

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

J
IM

0
1

0
J

im
e
n

e
z

M
a
r
ia

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

M
C

I0
6

0
M

c
In

to
s
h

J
a
m

e
s

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

P
A

T
0

1
0

P
a
tt

e
r
s
o
n

C
y
n

e
th

ia
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

R
E

I0
3

0
R

e
im

e
r

J
e
ff

r
e
y

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

R
IT

0
1

0
R

it
z

G
w

e
n

d
o
ly

n
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

S
M

I0
1

2
S

m
it

h
T

h
e
r
e
s
a

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

T
H

O
1

0
0

T
h

o
r
n

to
n

G
le

n
n

1
0
0
%

9
0
.1

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
0
.1

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
1
.4

5
5
2

$
  

  
3
5
.1

4
6
8

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.5

1
8
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

W
A

R
0

8
0

W
a
r
n

o
c
k

A
n

it
a

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
2
.4

5
8
0

$
  

  
3
5
.9

9
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
3
.8

4
5
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

W
A

T
5

2
6

W
a
tk

in
s

J
a
m

ie
1
0
0
%

1
7
.1

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
.1

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

7
.8

6
6
0

$
  

  
  

6
.6

6
9
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
.5

6
5
0

$
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

H
IR

0
1

0
H

ir
d

C
a
r
o
li

n
e

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7
3
.8

4
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
4
.6

1
5
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

4
.6

1
5
0

$
  

  
  

 
9
.2

3
0
0

$
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

K
IM

0
1

0
K

im
b
le

R
u

b
y

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
7
.6

9
0
0

$
  

  
4
6
.1

5
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
8
.4

6
0
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

M
A

Z
0

1
0

M
a
z
a

J
u

a
n

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
7
.6

9
0
0

$
  

  
4
6
.1

5
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
8
.4

6
0
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

M
O

O
0

8
0

M
o
o
r
e

W
il

li
a
m

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
8
7
.6

8
5
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
4
.6

1
5
0

$
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

R
O

B
1

4
1

R
o
b
e
r
ts

P
a
m

a
la

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
7
.6

9
0
0

$
  

  
4
6
.1

5
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
1
8
.4

6
0
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

W
IL

1
8

0
W

il
li

a
m

s
R

o
d
e
r
ic

k
1
0
0
%

6
7
.2

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
.2

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4
0
.3

2
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
6
.7

2
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

6
.7

2
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
1
3
.4

4
0
0

$
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

F
A

Y
0

1
0

F
a
y

J
o
h

n
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1
6
.6

1
4
0

$
  

  
  

 
1
.8

4
6
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

3
4
.7

0
4
8

$
  

  
2
8
.0

5
9
2

$
  

  
  

  
1
1
.0

7
6
0

$
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

M
IL

0
1

0
G

o
o
d
in

e
M

il
to

n
5
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
6
.1

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
8
.3

0
7
0

$
  

  
  

  
 

0
.9

2
3
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

1
7
.3

5
2
4

$
  

  
1
4
.0

2
9
6

$
  

  
  

  
5
.5

3
8
0

$
  

 
1
0
0
.0

0
%

B
L

O
0

2
0

B
lo

o
d
s
a
w

N
o
r
r
is

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
8
0
.3

0
1
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
1
1
.9

9
9
0

$
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

B
O

W
0

2
0

B
o
w

la
n

d
A

lb
e
r
t

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

D
O

R
0

4
0

D
o
r
e
r

V
it

o
n

y
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

F
IS

1
0

1
F

is
c
h

e
r

J
e
r
r
y

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

G
IL

0
5

0
G

il
e
s

B
r
e
n

d
a

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

H
U

I0
1

0
H

u
ip

io
-H

e
r
n

a
n

dA
m

e
r
ic

a
1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

K
R

E
0

1
0

K
r
e
y

J
e
ff

r
e
y

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

M
E

L
0

2
0

A
lv

e
z

C
a
r
m

e
n

1
0
0
%

9
1
.2

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
1
.2

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
9
1
.2

0
0
0

$
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

M
IN

0
1

0
M

in
ic

k
S

te
r
li

n
g

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

N
IE

0
2

0
N

ie
ve

s
 D

e
l 

V
a
ll

J
o
s
e

1
0
0
%

7
4
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
4
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7
4
.0

4
0
0

$
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

P
E

R
0

4
0

P
e
r
e
z

S
h

a
w

n
d
a

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
9
2
.3

0
0
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

P
E

R
0

6
0

P
e
r
r
e
ir

a
R

a
o
u

l
1
0
0
%

9
0
.7

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
0
.7

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
0
.7

9
2
0

$
  

  
  

  
3
9
.9

0
8
0

$
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

P
E

T
0

4
0

P
e
te

r
s
o
n

D
a
n

n
y

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
6
7
.3

7
9
0

$
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2
4
.9

2
1
0

$
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

P
U

E
0

1
0

P
u

e
s
c
h

e
ll

T
o
m

m
y

1
0
0
%

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
2
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
6
9
.2

2
5
0

$
  

  
  

 
7
.3

8
4
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

7
.3

8
4
0

$
  

  
  

 
8
.3

0
7
0

$
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
1
0
0
.0

0
%

P
a

y
ro

ll
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n



Li
br

ar
ie

s\
Do

cu
m

en
ts

\C
op

y 
of

 P
CT

S 
11

-3
0-

16
 –

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 E

xp
–

W
O

RK
IN

G
 C

O
PY

 -
rm



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #5(a)

Agenda Item: Authorization to add a position in para transit operations 
for the Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Program.  

Presenter: Aaron Dunn, Para Transit Manager
Steve Schaible, Human Resources 

Recommended 
Action: Approve the position of TD Transportation Coordinator 

Summary: On April 1st 2016 the Citrus Connection officially assumed the 
state Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) 
appointment as the Community Transportation Coordinator 
(CTC). The overall mission of Florida Transportation 
Disadvantaged Program is to ensure the availability of safe, 
efficient, cost-effective and quality transportation services for 
the transportation disadvantaged population of a designated 
service area.  

The CTC is responsible for the TD program with the following 
responsibilities:  

I. Plan, administer, monitor, coordinate, arrange, and 
deliver coordinated Transportation Disadvantaged 
services originating in their designated service area 

a) Provide transportation to disadvantaged
population 

b) Determine trip eligibility
c) Schedule trips
d) Analyze community’s transportation needs

and assets 
e) Cultivate transportation resources and

allocate efficiently  
II. Recommend and enforce eligibility guidelines mandated

by the CTD and Local Coordinating Board (LCB).
III. Accounting for coordinated transportation access

including: reporting, agency auditing, eligibility
documentation, and trip reporting



AGENDA ITEM #5(a) – CONT.

IV. Become and remain apprised of all TD resources
available or planned in service area (mobility
management) and provide access for 9% of the TD
population

Managing the mobility resources contained within the
provisions of the CTC’s duties designated by the CTD
were not addressed when the District assumed CTC
responsibilities.  To meet the requirements of the TD
program a dedicated position for the CTC and the TD
Program is mandatory for compliance with CTD
mandated transportation access requirements. There is no
financial obligation for the District since the funding for
this position will be derived from the upcoming TD grant
allocation (FY2017/18).

Funding: Funds are available in the Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) 
FY 2017-18 Operating Budget via the FY 17/18 CTC grant.   

The TD 2017/18 fiscal year is 1 July 2017, through 30 June 
2018. Accordingly, this position would begin on 1 July 2017. 
The estimated annual salary range for this position is $54,000-
to-$60,000 plus fringe benefits.   



 
Job Description 

Job Title: Community Transportation Coordinator 
Department: Para Transit 
Reports To: Director of Para Transit  
FLSA Status: Exempt 

 

 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

This position is responsible for professional work in the area of mass transit, para transit, transportation 
coordination, applicant screening, needs assessment, trip reporting, promotion, and networking. Work includes, 
but is not limited to efforts to coordinate the region’s transportation resources in order to ensure efficiency, 
maximize availability, and meet transportation needs and challenges for the communities in which the district 
serves.  

 
ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS: 

 
1. Assesses, analyze, and develop transportation resources across the service area in order to connect 

transportation services to community residence and participants   
2. Coordinate transportations services between various providers and resources in order to meet the 

transportation needs of the communities within the service area and beyond  
3. Assists in planning, developing and implementing community transportation delivery 
4. Perform all necessary transportation support services including scheduling, intake, customer service, ride 

sharing, purchased service information, and connectivity   
5. Upon request, provides best possible routes, transportation providers and schedules for community 

members; answer inquiries and provide information to customers and partners  
6. Build, track, and perform trips via the Trapeze software suite.  
7. Conduct transportation training for individuals and groups in order to ensure the safe, efficient usage of 

transportation resources across multiple providers and types  
8. Employ marketing, public relations and communication skills to organize and conduct community 

outreach, transportation needs assessment, and client accession.  
9. Conduct applicant processing, screening, intake and client maintenance in accordance with agency policy, 

appropriate regulations, and best practices.  
10. Maintain an organizational client pool; work closely with outside organizers to engender their support and 

participation in transportation delivery and initiatives  
11. Oversee and conduct auditing activities of para transit and fixed rout service participants, including all 

outside transportation partners. 
12. Collects, analyzes and presents transit service data by producing various statistical charts and graphs 

and explain process and variances 
13. Create, design, and present reports and performance information to governing entities including: boards, 

panels, forums, and agencies  
14. Develops and implements strategies to attract new customers and to retain existing customers by 

working with the disadvantaged segments of the areas served. 
15. Work with area organizations, groups, and businesses to increase program participation 
16. Formulates and implements comprehensive marketing programs, complete with deadlines and goals 



in order to execute, evaluate and adjust as needed. 
17. Conducts pass campaigns; ensures that space advertising and other marketing materials are properly 

presented and displayed, to include bus route maps, bus schedules, special programs, and promotions. 
18. Seeks out possible community outreach programs; facilitates all activities in relation to same. 
19. Provides customer service to both internal and external customers, clients, and the general public in the 

form of providing transit information such as services, routes, schedules, and fares 
20. Participates in community outreach events, workshops, and presentations.  

 
 

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES: Carries out supervisory responsibilities in accordance with the 
District’s policies and applicable law 
 

 
MINIMUM JOB REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Four-year college degree and;  (3) t o  ( 5 )  years of directly related experience desired in transportation 
coordination, transportation management, community coordination, or related fields. An equivalent combination 
of education and experience that is determined to be directly related to the specific requirements may be 
substituted.    

 
OTHER CERTIFICATES/LICENSES: 

 
Must have valid Florida driver’s license.  

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES REQUIRED: 

 
Able to maintain the highest degree of confidentiality. 
Ability to speak effectively before small and large groups and respond to questions. 
Ability to maintain a high level of professionalism and poise. 
Ability to express ideas clearly, both verbally and in writing.  
Strong interpersonal skills. 
PC literate, basic skills in Microsoft Office Suite and Internet research. 
Proficiency in Trapeze transportation software 
Must be a self-starter; able to work independently. 
Ability to establish effective working relationships with co-workers, peers, various organizational, 
County and City employees, customers, and the general public. 

   Uses sound, independent judgment in daily work activities and exercises discretion; has strong ethical 
standards. 

 
 
WORKING ENVIRONMENT and PHYSICAL DEMANDS: The work environment and physical demands 
characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while performing the essential 
functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 
these essential functions. 

 
This job is usually performed in a normal office environment. Must be physically able to lift and carry 20-25 lbs. 
infrequently. 

 
I have read, understand and agree to fulfill the requirements of the above job description and have been provided a 
copy. 

 

Employee Signature:     Date:     



 

Print Name:     
 
 

The statements contained herein reflect general details as necessary to describe the essential functions of this job, 
the level of knowledge, skills typically required and the scope of responsibility, but should not be considered an 
all-inclusive listing of work requirements. 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #5(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Human Resources Board Action Item – LAMTD Turnover 

Report 
 
Presenter: Steve Schaible, Director of Human Resources 
   
 
Recommended 
Action: Informational    
 
 
Summary:             Turnover graphs and comparisons 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 



2016
Fixed 24
Para 9
Admin 9
Maint 9
Call Center 3

2015 National Average 2016 LAMTD Turnover
Fixed & Para 21% 34%
Maint 12% 41.00%
Call Center 20% 20%

2016 Discharge 2016 Voluntary
Fixed 4 20
Para 4 5
Admin 6 3
Maint 2 7
Call Center 2 1

24

9 9 9

3

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Fixed Para Admin Maint Call Center

2016 Fiscal Year Turnover Analysis

2016

4

20

4 56

32

7

2 1

0

5

10

15

20

25

2016 Discharge 2016 Voluntary

2016 Discharge vs. Voluntary Analysis

Fixed Para Admin Maint Call Center

21%

12%

20%

34%

41.00%

20%

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%

Fixed & Para Maint Call Center

2015 National Average vs. FY 2016 LAMTD Turnover

2015 National Average 2016 LAMTD Turnover



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #6(a) 

Agenda Item: Transfer of Federally Funded Assets from Polk County to 
LAMTD 

Presenter: Tim Darby – Darby Group 

Recommended 
Action: Board Approval 

Summary: Oral Presentation 

Attachments: Transfer documents 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT 

DISTRICT, PROVIDING FOR ACCEPTANCE OF THE TRANSFER OF 

CERTAIN FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION-FUNDED 

EQUIPMENT; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE  

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Polk County, Florida (the 

“County”) has agreed to the transition of transit operations from the County to the Lakeland Area 

Mass Transit District, an independent special district (the “District”);  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the agreement for the transition of transit operations to the 

District, the County has transferred certain Federal Transit Administration funded equipment to 

the District; 

 WHEREAS, the District, as an independent special taxing district created by Polk 

County and City of Lakeland ordinances with a taxing authority approved through voter 

referendum, desires to accept the transfer of the FTA-funded equipment; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Transportation Administration (“FTA”) requires the District to 

provide a resolution memorializing and confirming the District’s acceptance of FTA-funded 

equipment. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DISTRICT AT ITS 

REGULAR MEETING ON MARCH 8, 2017:   

1. The District accepts the transfer of the FTA-funded equipment listed on Exhibit 

“A” attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. 

2. A copy of this Resolution will be forwarded by the Clerk of  the Board of County 

Commissioners and to the Florida Department of Transportation, along with the executed 

transfer documents. 

3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption by LAMTD. 

ADOPTED THIS 8
TH

 DAY OF MARCH, 2017. 

 

ATTEST: 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT 

DISTRICT 

 

By:  ______________________________  By:  ______________________________ 

 Tom Phillips, Executive Director   George Lindsey, III, Chairman  

 
Reviewed as to form and legal sufficiency: 

  

Ben H. Darby, Jr.  Date 



2 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Asset 

Number 

Decal 

# 
Asset Desc Serial Number Cost 

74803 52949 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051279 $6,137.00 

74805 52951 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051281 $6,137.00 

74806 52952 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051282 $6,137.00 

74808 52954 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051284 $6,137.00 

74810 52956 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051286 $6,137.00 

74811 52957 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051287 $6,137.00 

74812 52958 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051288 $6,137.00 

74813 52959 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051289 $6,137.00 

74814 52960 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051290 $6,137.00 

74815 52961 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051291 $6,137.00 

74820 52966 
GPS VEHICLE MONITOR 

SYSTEM 
28-11051296 $6,137.00 

75376 53318 DATA UNIT, PORTABLE CF-53EJAZX1M $18,625.00 

76069 53960 SWITCH, IT FOC1643W2KZ $1,471.00 

76070 53961 SWITCH, IT FOC1643W2KX $1,471.00 

76071 53962 SWITCH, IT FOC1644Y2M6 $2,404.00 

76072 53963 SWITCH, IT FOC1644Y2LK $2,404.00 

76073 53964 SWITCH, IT F0C1636Z1VJ $4,096.00 

76074 53965 SWITCH, IT F0C1636Y2CB $4,765.00 

76075 53966 FIREWALL JMX1614X0G2 $4,664.00 

77100 54035 COMPUTER, LAPTOP RD163B0008 $2,935.00 

77101 54036 COMPUTER, LAPTOP RD163B0007 $2,935.00 

77102 54037 COMPUTER, LAPTOP RD163B0006 $2,935.00 



3 

77103 54038 COMPUTER, LAPTOP RD163B0005 $2,935.00 

77104 54039 COMPUTER, LAPTOP RD163B0004 $2,935.00 

77091 54009 SERVER, IT USE306VKX1 $5,722.00 

77092 54010 SERVER, IT USE306VKXD $5,722.00 

77093 54011 SERVER, IT USE306VKX4 $5,722.00 

77094 54012 SERVER, IT USE306VKX3 $5,722.00 

77095 54013 SERVER, IT USE306VKXF $9,498.00 

77096 54014 SERVER, IT USE306VKXE $9,498.00 

77097 54015 SERVER, IT USE306VKXJ $9,498.00 

77098 54016 SAN DISK STORAGE MXQ30405YJ $41,139.00 

77099 54017 RACK, IT STORAGE   $1,818.00 

79071 54018 MONITOR, IT 2C42385C7A $2,151.00 

79113 54094 
UPS(UNINTERRUPED 

POWER SUPPLY) 
SIS1229003582 $1,094.00 

79114 54095 
UPS(UNINTERRUPED 

POWER SUPPLY) 
SIS1229003585 $1,094.00 

81170 54126 PRINTER, BADGE/ID 
TKJ/2Y-

01057/R3094 
$1,545.00 

88795 54508 SWITCH, IT 260113705 $4,009.00 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #6(b) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Coordination Agreement between LAMTD and Polk 

County – Transportation Disadvantaged 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby – Darby Group 
 
Recommended  
Action: Board Approval 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
 
Attachments: Coordination Agreement 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



COORDINATION AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT AND 

POLK COUNTY 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into between the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District, an independent 
special taxing district (hereinafter referred to as the “District”),  and Polk County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida 
(hereinafter referred to as the “GRANTEE”) as of the date last executed by the parties hereto below (“Effective Date”).   

The GRANTEE, identified below, agrees to coordinate transportation services to persons who are transportation 
disadvantaged1 and who are clients of the GRANTEE and not the general public, as required by the District, which is the 
Community Transportation Coordinator for the County.  District may sometimes be referred to hereinafter as the 
“COORDINATOR.” 

The GRANTEE will identify client transportation needs and refer those who are apropriate to the COORDINATOR. 

The GRANTEE acknowledges that, if feasible, vehicles funded with federal funds shall be made available to the 
COORDINATOR upon execution of a rate agreement between the COORDINATOR and the GRANTEE. 

The GRANTEE  shall comply with all safety standards as defined by  Florida Administrative Code Rule Chapter 14-90 with the 
exception of establishing a Drug Free Workplace program.  

The GRANTEE shall maintain a minimum and will provide District proof of Certificate of Liability Insurance of $200,000 per 
person and $300,000 per incident in effect at all times. 

The GRANTEE shall provide ridership and vehicle information, including estimated passenger trips and total funding available 
for transportation services along with other data reporting requirements as specified in the Annual Operating Report 
instructions from the Commission for the Transpoirtation Disadvantaged 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party by providing five (5) days’ written notice to the other party. This Agreement 
shall be for a period beginning  on the Effective Date and expires on December 31,2017, unless terminated at an earlier date 
as provided above.  

All notices, requests, demands and other communications which are require or may be given under this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when received if personally delivered; when transmitted if transmitted by 
telecopy, electronic telephone line facsimile transmission or other similar electronic or digital transmission method; the day 
after it is sent, if sent by recognized expedited delivery service; and five (5) days after it is sent, if mailed, first class mail, 
postage prepaid. In each case, notice shall be sent to: 

GRANTEE:  COORDINATOR: 
Polk County    Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Attn.: Health and Human Services Division 



Name: Marcia Andresen    Name: Tom Phillips       
Title: Director                Title: Executive Director         
Address:  1290 Golfview                  Address: 1212 George Jenkins   
Bartow, FL. 33830               Lakeland Fl. 33815    
 
This Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions contained in any other agreement between the District, GRANTEE, and 
any other governmental authority. Nothing in such agreements prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this 
Agreement to deliver the various benefits specifically described herein.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of this 
Agreement any provision of the above-referenced agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 
 
This Agreement is subject to all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations with which the District and GRANTEE are 
obligated to comply. Nothing in such laws, rules or regulations prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this 
agreement to deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 
 
In the performance of this Agreement, the District will be acting in the capacity of independent contractors, and not as an 
agent, employee, partner, joint venture, or associate of County.  The District shall be solely responsible for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures utilized by the District in the full performance of this Agreement.  Neither the 
District nor any of the employees, officers, agents or any other individual directed to act on behalf of the District for any act 
related to this Agreement, shall represent, act, purport to act, or be deemed to be the agent, representative, employee or 
servant of County. 
 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and venue of any legal proceedings 
shall be in Polk County, Florida, if the action is commenced in state court. If any action is commenced in federal court, then 
venue shall be in the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, Tampa Division. 
 
Nothing contained herein shall operate or be construed as a waiver of the County’s or the District’s limit of liability as set forth 
in §768.28 of the Florida Statutes regardless of whether such claims are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and 
negligence, product liability or otherwise.  
 
Each of the undersigned warrants and represents that he or she is authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the 
entity identified 
  
1 Chapter 427 Florida Statutes defines Transportation Disadvantaged as, “those persons, including children as defined in s. 411.202 F.S., 
who because of physical or mental disability, income status, or inability to drive due to age or disability are unable to transport themselves 
or to purchase transportation and have no other form of transportation available.  These persons are, therefore, dependent upon others to 
obtain access to health care, employment, education, shopping, or medically necessary or life-sustaining activities.” 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 

 



Polk County, a political subdivision of the State of  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District  
Florida 
 
By:   By:        
     
 
Title:   Title:  Chairman    
 
Date:   Date:       
 
Attest:  Witnesses: 
 
Stacy M. Butterfield, Clerk of Courts   
 
  By:  ___________________________________ 
By: _________________________________   
      Deputy Clerk   
  Date:  ____________________________ 
 
   
  By:        
                    
 
  Date:       
 
 

Polk County / District Coordination Agreement 
 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #6(c) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Lakeland Downtown Development Authority UAP 
 
Presenter: Tim Darby – Darby Group 
 
Recommended  
Action: Board Approval 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
 
Attachments: LDDA Universal Access Program 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Service Agreement - 
Lakeland Downtown Development Authority and  

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
 
 

This Service Agreement is entered into this _______ day of _________________, 

2017, by and among Lakeland Downtown Development Authority, an independent 

special taxing district (hereinafter referred to as “LDDA”), and the Lakeland Area Mass 

Transit District, an independent special taxing district (hereinafter referred to as the 

“District”). 

  

WHEREAS, LDDA desires to provide participants in the EBT program the 

benefit of access to public transit on Saturdays as a means of commuting to the 

Downtown Farmer’s Curb Market for the purchase of fresh foods; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the District operates public transit systems which currently provide 

fixed route bus service to and around the Downtown Farmer’s Curb Market;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 

the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

a) The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year commencing on 

__________, 2017, through and including ___________, 2018.   

 

b) This Agreement shall terminate if LDDA or the District provide written 

notice of  

intent to terminate this Agreement (“Termination Notice”) to the other parties hereto, 

ninety (90) days prior to termination of the service.   

 

c) The District will allow EBT participants access to the transit system on each 

Saturday during the term of the agreement for each fixed route transit trip when the 

participants show the appropriate EBT food card.  The District, shall provide access to 

fixed route transit service for all current EBT participants in accordance with the terms of 

this Agreement.  

 



d) Hours of operation of bus service are defined as the number of hours each 

bus  

 
operates plus reasonable travel time each way to and from the District Operations Centers 

where the particular bus is based.  The District does not operate on New Year’s Day, 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor 

Day, Columbus Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, or Christmas Day.  

  

e) The rate to be charged to LDDA by the District for the transit service during the 

term of the Agreement will be $500.00.  LDDA shall remit payment within 30 days from 

receipt of invoice.   

 

6. This Agreement is subject to the terms and conditions contained in any interlocal 

or other agreement between the District and any other governmental authority, including, 

without limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the County of 

Polk, and between the County and any other governmental authority including, without 

limitation, the City of Lakeland, the Polk Transit Authority, and the District. Nothing in 

such agreements prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this agreement to 

deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 

g) This Agreement is subject to all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and 

regulations with which the District and the County are obligated to comply. Nothing in 

such laws, rules or regulations prohibits or limits the ability of any of the parties to this 

agreement to deliver the various benefits specifically described herein. 

 8.  Failure of any party to comply with any provision of this Agreement shall place 

that party in default.  Prior to terminating this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall 

notify the defaulting party in writing.  The notification shall make specific reference to 

the condition alleged to give rise to the default.  The defaulting party shall then be 

entitled to a period of fifteen (15) days from the date notification is received in which to 

cure the default.  If said default is not cured within the fifteen (15) day period, this 

Agreement may be terminated by the non-defaulting party.  The failure of any party to 

exercise this right shall not be considered a waiver of such right in the event of any 

further default or non-compliance. 



 

9. All notices, requests, demands and other communications which are required  

or may be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have 

been duly given when received if personally delivered; when transmitted if transmitted 

by telecopy, electronic telephone line facsimile transmission or other similar electronic 

or digital transmission method; the day after it is sent, if sent by recognized expedited 

delivery service; and five (5) days after it is sent, if mailed, first class mail, postage 

prepaid. In each case, notice shall be sent to: 

 

LDDA:   Lakeland Downtown Development Authority 

   228 S. Massachusetts Ave.  

   Lakeland, FL 33801 

   ATTN: Julie Townsend 

 

DISTRICT:  Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

    1212 George Jenkins Boulevard 

    Lakeland, FL 33815 

    ATTN: Tom Phillips 

 

10. If any covenant or provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid,  

illegal or incapable of being enforced, all other covenants and provisions of this 

Agreement shall, nevertheless, remain in full force and effect, and no covenant or 

provision shall be dependent upon any other covenant or provision unless so expressed 

herein. 

 

11. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties  

and is a complete and exclusive statement of the Agreement between the parties.  Any 

renewals alterations, variations, modifications, amendments or waivers of provisions of 

this Agreement shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed, 

approved by all entities and attached to this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes all 

other agreements and proposals, oral or written, regarding the subject matter herein, and 

all such other agreements and proposals are hereby deemed void. 

 



12. In the performance of this Agreement, the District will be acting in the  

capacity of independent contractors, and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, 

or associate of LDDA.  The District shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, 

techniques, sequences, and procedures utilized by the District in the full performance of 

this Agreement.  Neither the District nor any of the employees, officers, agents or any 

other individual directed to act on behalf of the District for any act related to this 

Agreement, shall represent, act, purport to act, or be deemed to be the agent, 

representative, employee or servant of LDDA. 

 

13. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of  

Florida and venue of any legal proceedings shall be in Polk County, Florida, if the action 

is commenced in state court. If any action is commenced in federal court, then venue 

shall be in the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida, Tampa 

Division. 

 

14. Nothing contained herein shall operate or be construed as a waiver of LDDA’s or  

the District’s limit of liability as set forth in §768.28 of the Florida Statutes regardless of 

whether such claims are based in tort, contract, statute, strict liability, and negligence, 

product liability or otherwise.  

 

15. LDDA and District agree that both parties shall comply with Florida’s public  

records law to specifically include the following: 

 Public Records. District agrees to: 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the public agency to perform 

the service. 

b. Upon request from the public agency’s custodian of public records, provide 

the public agency with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to 

be inspected or copies within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed 

the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law. 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 

public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized 

by law for the duration of the agreement term and following completion of 

the contract if LDDA does not transfer the records to the public agency. 



d. Upon completion of the agreement, transfer, at no cost to the public agency 

all public records in possession of LDDA or maintain public records required 

by the public agency to perform the service. If LDDA transfers all public 

records to the public agency upon completion of the contract, LDDA shall 

destroy any duplicate public records upon completion of the agreement, 

LDDA shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.  

All records stored electronically must be provided to the public agency, upon 

request from the public agency’s custodian of public records, in a format that 

is compatible with the information technology systems of the public agency.  

 

IF LDDA HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 

119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO LDDA’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 

RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT MIKE MEDINA, 

THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT DISTRICT 863-327-1370, 

MMEDINA@RIDECITRUS.COM, 1212 GEORGE JENKINS BOULEVARD, 

LAKELAND, FLORIDA 33815.  

 

16. Each of the undersigned warrants and represents that he or she is authorized to  

execute this Agreement on behalf of the entity identified.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
 

 



 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed 
for the uses and purposes therein expressed the day and year set forth above. 
                                                              

                                                               
LAKELAND DOWNTOWN 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 
 
___________________________________ BY:   
                                                                                                      
___________________________________  
Witnesses 
  

LAKELAND AREA MASS 
TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 
 
 
____________________________________ BY:   
                                                                                    George Lindsey III, Board Chairman 
____________________________________ 
Witnesses 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #7(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: TSI Quarterly Report  
 
Presenter: Bill Knieriem, Director of Operations 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Quarterly TSI report 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Th
ird

 Q
TR

   
6:

15
 a

m
 - 

11
:1

5 
am

   
11

:1
5 

am
 - 

3:
15

 p
m

   
3:

15
 p

m
 - 

7:
15

 p
m

Ju
ly

-S
ep

t 2
01

6
M

in
 p

er
 tr

ip
M

ax
 p

er
 tr

ip
 A

vg
 p

er
 tr

ip
M

in
 p

er
 tr

ip
M

ax
 p

er
 tr

ip
 A

vg
 p

er
 tr

ip
M

in
 p

er
 tr

ip
M

ax
 p

er
 tr

ip
 A

vg
 p

er
 tr

ip
Ro

ut
e 

1 
11

.3
25

.7
18

.5
22

.5
26

.3
24

.4
14

.5
25

.1
19

.8
Ro

ut
e 

3
12

.2
22

.8
17

.5
16

.1
20

.7
18

.4
12

.0
17

.8
14

.9
Ro

ut
e 

3X
Ro

ut
e 

4X
0.

5
2.

4
1.

45
Ro

ut
e 

10
9.

3
12

.2
10

.8
11

.6
12

.9
12

.3
11

.0
13

.2
12

.1
Ro

ut
e 

14
 

11
.2

18
.7

15
.0

14
.3

18
.4

16
.4

9.
2

14
.9

12
.1

Ro
ut

e 
15

 
7.

7
18

.4
13

.1
14

.1
16

.9
15

.5
7.

1
18

.3
12

.7
Ro

ut
e 

22
 X

L
23

.6
35

.2
29

.4
25

.3
31

.0
28

.2
26

.2
29

.9
28

.1
Ro

ut
e 

32
/3

3
6.

5
13

.9
10

.2
7.

6
10

.8
9.

2
1.

0
8.

7
4.

9
Ro

ut
e 

39
6.

0
6.

0
6.

0
7.

0
7.

0
7.

0
3.

3
3.

3
3.

3
Ro

ut
e 

45
12

.5
20

.2
16

.4
16

.7
20

.5
18

.6
8.

0
20

.7
14

.4
Ro

ut
e 

46
9.

1
10

.4
9.

8
10

.6
13

.4
12

.0
8.

9
13

.9
11

.4
Ro

ut
e 

47
10

.5
12

.5
11

.5
12

.4
13

.8
13

.1
10

.4
11

.9
11

.2
Ro

ut
e 

58
 

5.
9

18
.3

12
.1

7.
6

12
.3

10
.0

5.
1

17
.2

11
.2

Ro
ut

e 
12

14
.5

25
.9

20
.2

15
.3

24
.7

20
.0

8.
3

23
.3

15
.8

Ro
ut

e 
15

W
H

19
.1

44
.6

31
.9

22
.5

44
.7

33
.6

17
.3

23
.9

20
.6

ro
ut

e 
22

 X
W

10
.6

22
.0

16
.3

19
.6

20
.6

20
.1

7.
6

22
.1

14
.9

ro
ut

e 
30

4.
1

20
.4

12
.3

13
.4

18
.8

16
.1

13
.8

20
.1

17
.0

Ro
ut

e 
27

1.
2

1.
2

1.
2

0.
8

0.
8

0.
8

Ro
ut

e 
30

13
.6

16
.7

15
.2

17
.3

24
.4

20
.9

11
.5

20
.3

15
.9

Ro
ut

e 
35

9.
8

14
.7

12
.3

7.
5

12
.3

9.
9

1.
3

10
.4

5.
9

Ro
ut

e 
40

/4
4

11
.9

15
.6

13
.8

12
.5

17
.6

15
.1

9.
4

14
.6

12
.0

Ro
ut

e 
50

13
.3

25
.7

19
.5

20
.3

24
.0

22
.2

11
.3

18
.9

15
.1

Re
gu

la
r F

ix
ed

 R
ou

te
10

 +
 

ro
ut

e 
do

in
g 

w
el

l
7 

- 9
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
in

or
 c

ha
ng

es
0 

- 6
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

es

Fl
ex

 R
ou

te
s

7+
 

ro
ut

e 
do

in
g 

w
el

l
4 

- 6
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
in

or
 c

ha
ng

es
0 

- 3
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

es



Fo
ur

th
 Q

TR
   

6:
15

 a
m

 - 
11

:1
5 

am
   

11
:1

5 
am

 - 
3:

15
 p

m
   

3:
15

 p
m

 - 
7:

15
 p

m
O

ct
-D

ec
 2

01
6

M
in

 p
er

 tr
ip

M
ax

 p
er

 tr
ip

 A
vg

 p
er

 tr
ip

M
in

 p
er

 tr
ip

M
ax

 p
er

 tr
ip

 A
vg

 p
er

 tr
ip

M
in

 p
er

 tr
ip

M
ax

 p
er

 tr
ip

 A
vg

 p
er

 tr
ip

Ro
ut

e 
1 

15
.7

26
.6

21
.2

23
.0

28
.7

25
.9

12
.7

26
.0

19
.4

Ro
ut

e 
3

12
.0

21
.2

16
.6

17
.2

21
.0

19
.1

13
.2

17
.9

15
.6

Ro
ut

e 
3X

Ro
ut

e 
4X

1.
2

2.
8

2
Ro

ut
e 

10
7.

0
11

.7
9.

4
9.

8
12

.3
11

.1
8.

3
12

.3
10

.3
Ro

ut
e 

14
 

12
.2

18
.7

15
.5

14
.3

18
.4

16
.4

9.
2

14
.9

12
.1

Ro
ut

e 
15

 
7.

7
20

.3
14

.0
13

.9
18

.7
16

.3
9.

5
19

.1
14

.3
Ro

ut
e 

22
 X

L
23

.6
32

.7
28

.2
26

.0
30

.1
28

.1
26

.1
32

.9
29

.5
Ro

ut
e 

32
/3

3
8.

9
14

.2
11

.6
8.

4
11

.4
9.

9
1.

2
8.

4
4.

8
Ro

ut
e 

39
7.

7
7.

7
7.

7
7.

5
7.

5
7.

5
4.

7
4.

7
4.

7
Ro

ut
e 

45
14

.1
20

.8
17

.5
16

.2
19

.1
17

.7
5.

9
20

.0
13

.0
Ro

ut
e 

46
9.

6
15

.0
12

.3
11

.3
16

.7
14

.0
10

.1
17

.7
13

.9
Ro

ut
e 

47
11

.8
13

.3
12

.6
12

.4
13

.7
13

.1
10

.4
14

.0
12

.2
Ro

ut
e 

58
 

5.
6

14
.4

10
.0

7.
9

13
.7

10
.8

5.
7

16
.6

11
.2

Ro
ut

e 
12

16
.8

25
.7

21
.3

17
.8

24
.2

21
.0

8.
7

27
.3

18
.0

Ro
ut

e 
15

W
H

23
.6

45
.1

34
.4

24
.8

52
.0

38
.4

18
.4

29
.7

24
.1

ro
ut

e 
22

 X
W

11
.3

24
.8

18
.1

20
.6

26
.5

23
.6

8.
6

22
.2

15
.4

ro
ut

e 
30

3.
7

21
.6

12
.7

16
.0

22
.0

19
.0

17
.1

19
.2

18
.2

Ro
ut

e 
27

1.
2

1.
2

1.
2

0.
8

0.
8

Ro
ut

e 
30

11
.8

20
.3

16
.1

18
.3

25
.1

21
.7

12
.5

20
.3

16
.4

Ro
ut

e 
35

8.
3

13
.1

10
.7

7.
2

11
.5

9.
4

1.
0

8.
9

5.
0

Ro
ut

e 
40

/4
4

10
.8

17
.5

14
.2

12
.1

17
.9

15
.0

7.
7

12
.9

10
.3

Ro
ut

e 
50

15
.8

27
.4

21
.6

19
.9

25
.2

22
.6

11
.8

18
.6

15
.2

Re
gu

la
r F

ix
ed

 R
ou

te
10

 +
 

ro
ut

e 
do

in
g 

w
el

l
7 

- 9
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
in

or
 c

ha
ng

es
0 

- 6
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

es

Fl
ex

 R
ou

te
s

7+
 

ro
ut

e 
do

in
g 

w
el

l
4 

- 6
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
in

or
 c

ha
ng

es
0 

- 3
.9

po
ss

ib
le

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

es



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #8(a) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Activity Calendar 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
 
Attachments: February Activity Calendar 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #8(b) 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: UAP & Ridership Report 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 

including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 
Response.  

 
 
Attachments: Ridership Report 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



UAP Ridership Totals 2015-16 LAMTD WHAT Total
December 14,057 9,363 23,420

January 15,860 9,809 25,669
UAP Ridership 2016 LAMTD WHAT Total
Polk State College

December 2,969                         1,385                    4,354                    
January 3,535                         1,730                    5,265                    

LEGOLAND
December 155                            1,403                    1,558                    

January 118                            1,334                    1,452                    
South Eastern University

December 125                            22                          147                       
January 148                            21                          169                       

COLTS
December 1,122                         1,006                    2,128                    

January 2,115                         1,142                    3,257                    
Veterans

December 2,983                         1,397                    4,380                    
January 3,029                         1,318                    4,347                    

Southern Technical College
December 216                            256                       472                       

January 246                            360                       606                       
Polk Health Care

December 2,690                         1,104                    3,794                    
January 2,389                         966                       3,355                    

Central Florida Healthcare
December 1,944                         635                       2,579                    

January 1,958                         522                       2,480                    
New Beginnings High School

December 1,853                         2,155                    4,008                    
January 2,322                         2,416                    4,738                    













LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #8(c) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Florida Avenue Re-alignment Update 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
 
Attachments: South Florida Realignment Transit Alternatives 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





La
ke

Ho
lli

ng
sw

or
th

La
ke

M
or

to
n

La
ke

M
irr

or

La
ke

Hu
nt

er

La
ke

W
ire

W
. M

ai
n 

St
.

S. New York Ave.

S. Missouri Ave. S. Missouri Ave.

S. Florida Ave.

S. Tennessee Ave. S. Tennessee Ave.

S. New York Ave.
S. New York Ave.

S. Lakeside Ave.

S. Kentucky Ave.

E.
 M

ai
n 

St
.

Li
m

e 
St

.

Pa
lm

et
to

 S
t.

Ol
iv

e 
St

.

W
. H

ig
hl

an
d 

St
.

Hu
nt

er
 S

t.

W
. P

at
te

rs
on

 S
t.

W
. P

ar
k 

St
.

W
. B

el
m

ar
 S

t.

W
. H

an
co

ck
 S

t.

Ar
ia

na
 S

t.
Le

no
x 

St
.

Hi
br

ite
n 

W
ayPa

lm
ol

a 
St

.

E.
 B

el
m

ar
 S

t.

E.
 P

ar
k 

St
.

South Blvd.South Blvd.

Ca
nn

on
 S

t.

E.
 R

id
ge

w
oo

d 
St

.
W

. R
id

ge
w

oo
d 

St
.

Cr
es

ap
 S

t.

Ch
ar

le
s 

St
.

Fi
nn

ey
 S

t.

Sikes Blvd.

Si
ke

s 
Bl

vd
.

E.
 O

ak
 S

t.

E.
 B

ay
 S

t.

Tr
ad

er
s 

Al
le

y

W
. P

in
e 

St
.

Succe
ss 

Ave.

Li
m

e 
St

.

Mississippi Ave.

Success Ave.

S. Florida Ave. S. Florida Ave. S. Florida Ave.

Fr
an

k 
Ll

oy
d 

W
rig

ht
 W

ay

W
. H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t.

W
. W

al
nu

t S
t.

E.
 L

em
on

 S
t.

W
. L

em
on

 S
t.

E.
 O

ra
ng

e 
St

.
W

. O
ra

ng
e 

St
.

FL
OR

ID
A

SO
UT

HE
RN

CO
LL

EG
E

ST
. J

OS
EP

H
AC

AD
EM

Y

PO
ST

OF
FI

CE

W
AL

GR
EE

NS

PU
BL

IC
LI

BR
AR

Y
LA

KE
M

OR
TO

N
AP

TS
.

M
UN

N
PA

RK

HO
LL

IS
GA

RD
EN

S

CH
AM

BE
R

OF
 C

OM
M

ER
CE

NO
BA

Y

BA
RN

ET
T

FA
M

IL
Y

PA
RK

PO
LI

CE
DE

PT
.

PO
ST

OF
FI

CE

LA
KE

LA
ND

ST
AT

IO
N

S. Missouri Ave.

S. Kentucky Ave.

La
ke

Ho
lli

ng
sw

or
th

La
ke

M
or

to
n

La
ke

M
irr

or

La
ke

Hu
nt

er

La
ke

W
ire

W
. M

ai
n 

St
.

S. New York Ave.

S. Missouri Ave. S. Missouri Ave. S. Missouri Ave.

S. Florida Ave.

S. Tennessee Ave. S. Tennessee Ave.

S. Kentucky Ave.

S. New York Ave.
S. New York Ave.

S. Lakeside Ave.

S. Kentucky Ave.

E.
 M

ai
n 

St
.

Li
m

e 
St

.

Pa
lm

et
to

 S
t.

Ol
iv

e 
St

.

W
. H

ig
hl

an
d 

St
.

Hu
nt

er
 S

t.

W
. P

at
te

rs
on

 S
t.

W
. P

ar
k 

St
.

W
. B

el
m

ar
 S

t.

W
. H

an
co

ck
 S

t.

Ar
ia

na
 S

t.
Le

no
x 

St
.

Hi
br

ite
n 

W
ayPa

lm
ol

a 
St

.

E.
 B

el
m

ar
 S

t.

E.
 P

ar
k 

St
.South Blvd.South Blvd.

Ca
nn

on
 S

t.

E.
 R

id
ge

w
oo

d 
St

.
W

. R
id

ge
w

oo
d 

St
.

Cr
es

ap
 S

t.

Ch
ar

le
s 

St
.

Fi
nn

ey
 S

t.

Sikes Blvd.

Si
ke

s 
Bl

vd
.

E.
 O

ak
 S

t.

E.
 B

ay
 S

t.

Tr
ad

er
s 

Al
le

y

W
. P

in
e 

St
.

Succe
ss 

Ave.

Li
m

e 
St

.

Mississippi Ave.

Success Ave.

S. Florida Ave. S. Florida Ave. S. Florida Ave.

Fr
an

k 
Ll

oy
d 

W
rig

ht
 W

ay

W
. H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t.

W
. W

al
nu

t S
t.

E.
 L

em
on

 S
t.

W
. L

em
on

 S
t.

E.
 O

ra
ng

e 
St

.
W

. O
ra

ng
e 

St
.

N. Massachusetts Ave.

FL
OR

ID
A

SO
UT

HE
RN

CO
LL

EG
E

ST
. J

OS
EP

H
AC

AD
EM

Y

PO
ST

OF
FI

CE

W
AL

GR
EE

NS

PU
BL

IC
LI

BR
AR

Y
LA

KE
M

OR
TO

N
AP

TS
.

M
UN

N
PA

RK

HO
LL

IS
GA

RD
EN

S

CH
AM

BE
R

OF
 C

OM
M

ER
CE

NO
BA

Y

BA
RN

ET
T

FA
M

IL
Y 

PA
RK

PO
LI

CE
DE

PT
.

PO
ST

OF
FI

CE

LA
KE

LA
ND

ST
AT

IO
N



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #8(d) 

 
 
Agenda Item: Executive Director District Report 
 
Presenter: Tom Phillips, Executive Director 
 
Recommended  
Action: Informational 
 
Summary: Oral Presentation 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

FEBRUARY 8, 2017 
AGENDA ITEM #9 

 
 
Agenda Item: Other Business 
 
Presenter: TBD 
 
Recommended  
Action: TBD 
 
Summary:  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	ITEM 1 - Approval of Minutes
	ITEM 2 - Public Comments
	CCON-0217-013-South FL Realignment Transit Alternatives PROOF3
	Item 3(a) - LAMTD Financials
	LAMTD Financials  FY16-17
	Financials

	ITEM 3(b) - PCTS Financials
	PCTS Financial Summary
	PCTS Financials
	Item 4(a) - CTC Evaluation
	2016 CTC Eval Report 2017
	CTC
	Citrus Connection CTC Meeting
	Slide Number 2
	Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD) and Local Coordinating Board (LCB) recommended staffing changes along with increased trip categories of service to address the following concerns:
	Slide Number 4
	2 Main Contributing Factors
	Loss of Medicaid
	*Organizational Differences*�Polk Transit Position Control
	Polk Transit �Service Delivery Organizational Chart (Supported 29 TD runs)
	Citrus Connection �Service Delivery Organizational Chart at Merger
	Citrus Connection �Current Service Delivery Organizational Chart
	Citrus Connection �Short-term Goal Organizational Chart
	Lack of evaluation and considerations of differences in costs caused major lapses for implementing a viable operating budget for the TD program
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Over the first 2 quarters in FY 16/17 expenses have been accurately captured, yet insufficiently support the operation 
	Slide Number 17
	Rate Model Variances
	Expenses
	Libraries\Documents\Copy of PCTS 11-30-16 – Operating Exp – WORKING COPY -rm

	Item 5(a) - Transportation Coordinator
	Transportation Coordinator Description
	SUMMARY:
	ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS:
	MINIMUM JOB REQUIREMENTS:
	OTHER CERTIFICATES/LICENSES:
	KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES REQUIRED:

	Salary Info
	Item 5(b) - BOARD ACTION ITEM LAMTD Turnover Report
	ITEM 6(a) - Transfer of Federal Assets
	ITEM 6(b) - Coordination Agreement
	SSD Cor Agr 2016.CAO Revised.170223
	ITEM 6(c) - LDDA UAP
	LDDA UAP 2017
	ITEM 7(a) - TSI Report
	Quarterly TSI Report
	Sheet1

	ITEM 8(a) - Activity Calendar
	ITEM 8(b) - UAP and Ridership
	Ridership Report
	ITEM 9 - Oth Biz
	Attrition Report.pdf
	Sheet1

	Ridership Spreadsheet.pdf
	Sheet1

	Attrition Report.pdf
	Sheet1

	Transportation Coordinator Description.pdf
	SUMMARY:
	ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS:
	MINIMUM JOB REQUIREMENTS:
	OTHER CERTIFICATES/LICENSES:
	KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES REQUIRED:

	Attrition Report.pdf
	Sheet1




